
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, July 2, 2021 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Dr. Ford G'Segner 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Appeal by Josh & Lauren Sprayberry against a decision made by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission denying a rear setback variance for 149 Mags Path (staff-P&D) 

 

Code of Ordinances Public Hearing 
6. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 6 (Alcoholic 

Beverages) and Chapter 18 (Buildings and Building Regulations) (staff-CA-CC-P&D) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - June 15, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

9. Approval of Right-of-Way Permit for Tim Camp (staff-CM) 

10. Request from Tax Commissioner to write off bad debts (TC) 

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution Electing not to require Mobile Home Decals (TC 

& TA) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 

13. County Attorney Report 

14. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
15. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

5. Appeal by Josh & Lauren Sprayberry against a decision made by the Planning & Zoning Commission 

denying a rear setback variance for 149 Mags Path (staff-P&D)

2



Appeal by Josh & Lauren Sprayberry against a decision made by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission denying a rear setback variance for 149 

Mags Path.  Presently zoned R-1 [Map 104A, Parcel 102, District 3]. 
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicants are requesting a 30-foot rear setback variance, being 35 feet from 

the nearest point to the lake, to construct a 16ft.x32ft pool. As it stands, this 
property has already received three variances for the construction of the primary 

dwelling unit. The primary dwelling unit is currently under construction and was 
granted both a lake and sides setback variance on April 7, 2016, due to the 
narrowness of the lot. The lot width is 91 ft wide in the buildable area.  In addition, 

the applicants were given some relief from the lake setback, which was a minimum 
of 100 feet from the nearest point to the lake. The applicants were granted an 8-

foot side yard setback variance being 12 feet from the left and right-side property 
lines and a 25-foot rear yard setback variance being 75 feet from the nearest point 
to the lake. The home consists of 9,620 heated square feet, 1,156 unheated square 

feet., and 1,165 square feet of porches and decks with a total square footage of 
11,941. Staff measured the unfinished home with an attached garage and found 

that it is currently 157 feet in length and 71 feet wide.  In addition, there will be 
three sets of stairs sloping from the upper balcony that will extend near or beyond 

the 65-foot minimum setback from the lake. However, once completed, the 
footprint of the house will exceed the lakeside variance that was approved in 2016 
but shall not be closer than 65 ft from the nearest point to the lake.   

 
As aforementioned, in 2016, the applicants were granted several variances, 

including a lakeside variance, to develop this property. There was a 25% deviation 
approved from the 100 feet minimum setback from the lake to 75 feet, and the 
BOC has since given a 35% decrease in the minimum required lakeside setback to 

65 feet.  This lot is approximately 230+ feet in length from the buildable area to 
the lake. The applicant has chosen to maximize the buildable area of this parcel 

with the construction of their considerably large new home with no consideration for 
an accessory structure that must meet all applicable setbacks as well. Staff, 
therefore, finds no undue hardship related to the property that is not a direct act of 

the applicants.  As a result, this request fails to meet any of the conditions for 
granting a variance listed in the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-

157(c).  
 
The staff recommendation is for denial of a 30-foot rear yard setback 

variance being 35 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 149 Mags Path 
[Map 104A, Parcel 102]. 

 

3



 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for denial of a 30-foot rear 
yard setback variance being 35 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 149 Mags 

Path [Map 104A, Parcel 102]. 
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 

Thursday, June 3, 2021, at 6:30 P.M. in the Putnam County Administration 
Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

4



 
PRESENT:  

Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 
Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 

Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell  
 

ABSENT: 
Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 

 
STAFF: 
Ms. Lisa Jackson 

Ms. Courtney Andrews 
Mr. Ben Schmitt 

Putnam County Attorney, Mr. Adam Nelson 
 
Request by Josh & Lauren Sprayberry for a rear yard setback variance at 149 

Mags Path. Presently zoned R-1 [Map 104A, Parcel 102, District 3]. Doug 
Dillard represented this request. He stated that they are requesting a 30-foot rear 

yard variance to build a swimming pool 35 feet from the lake. He added that the 
evidence they provided would show that it is not uncommon in Putnam County or 

Lake Oconee to request a variance. Attorney Dillard described the property being 
a long and narrow-shaped lot at the end of a cul-de-sac on Mags Path, and it is also 
a corner lot on Capps Lane. He added that the lot characteristics severely limit the 

ability to locate a pool. He asserted that there are two requirements for the 
granting of a variance in Putnam County. The first requirement was “Where by 

exceptional narrowness, shallowness or shape of a specific piece of property.” The 
second requirement was, “Where there are extraordinary or exceptional conditions 
which create an undue hardship on the property owner.” Attorney Dillard stated 

that the staff report focused on undue hardship, and he believed that they satisfied 
both requirements. He added that if staff did not believe both requirements were 

met, the shape and topography of the lot would make them entitled to a variance. 
He asked the board to turn to “Exhibit A” of the filings presented. It showed that 
the lot was platted before the current ordinance in February of 2005. Therefore, 

they are entitled to a variance. Attorney Dillard indicated that the decision to 
locate the house where they did was not due to poor judgement but poor soil. The 

poor soil prevented them from building the house closer to Mags Path. The poor 
soils, narrowness of the lot, and multiple street frontages that restrain the use of 
the property confirms to their extraordinary and exceptional conditions. Locating 

the pool elsewhere on the property is not physically possible. There is no room for 
the pool between the residence and Mags Path because of the location of the septic 

system. The residence would also block the sunlight on the pool in that area. He 
added that the zoning ordinance permits accessory structures in the side or rear 
yard of any residential district. Placing the pool between the house and the lake is 

commonplace. He specified on “Exhibit B” that there are at least three homes on 
Mags Path that enjoy swimming pools and are located between the home and Lake 

Oconee. Under “Exhibit C” the adjacent property located at 145 Mags Path has their 
residence 68 feet from the lake and the subject residence is 75 feet from the lake. 

5



The hot tub and fireplace at 145 Mags Path were 32.6 and 30.6, feet respectively, 
from the lake. Attorney Dillard stated that they provided the board with a list of 

almost 60 cases where the commission has approved lakeside variances since 
2015, including swimming pools on “Exhibit D”. He added that the commission 

granted a 60-foot lake setback variance for Cuscowilla Clubhouse and the owners 
only need a 30-foot lake setback. He added that “Exhibit E” was an Environmental 
Assessment done by Cody Hayle, who later spoke on his assessment. “Exhibit F” 

shows letters of support from adjacent neighbors. Attorney Dillard asked the 
board to grant the respected variance because it satisfies both variance 

requirements.  
 
At this time, those who signed in to speak in favor of the variance request at 149 

Mags Path, were given 3 minutes each to speak. 
 

Cody Hayle 
Josh Sprayberry 
 

No one spoke in opposition of this request. 
 

Member Mitchell asked Mr. Sprayberry for clarification of one of the three 
properties mentioned with a pool that was constructed in 2019. Mr. Sprayberry 

confirmed that the property belonged to the Capps and was constructed in 2019 or 
2020. Member Mitchell asked Mr. Sprayberry what the distance was from the 
Capps’ pool to the lake. Mr. Sprayberry stated that the Capps Pool was 100 feet 

from the lake but, his lot has narrowness, and he showed Member Mitchell where 
his drainage/septic field was located. He added that the maps he presented were of 

pools built in Putnam County since 2019 with that distance from the water. 
Member Mitchell referenced the Capps pool being 100 feet from the lake. Mr. 
Sprayberry indicated that the Capps lot is substantially wider, and the house is 

located closer to the road. This was an option they did not have on their lot. 
Member Mitchell asked Mr. Sprayberry to confirm what year the pool was 

approved on Lot 11 of “Exhibit B”. Mr. Sprayberry confirmed that the pool was 
constructed in May 2015 and is 75 feet from the shoreline. Member Mitchell also 
asked for clarification on Lot 14. Mr. Sprayberry replied that it appeared to be 55 

feet from the lake and was constructed in 2007. Member Mitchell stated that the 
other examples that Mr. Sprayberry cited were not in his community. Mr. 

Sprayberry confirmed that they were not, but they are in Putnam County and 
were built within the same ordinance. Attorney Jeff Haymore explained that 
“Exhibit D” shows over 60 cases where the commission has granted a variance 

reducing the rear yard from the lake. Many of the properties were zoned R-1, just 
as the Sprayberry property. They all had the 100-foot setback requirement from 

the lake. “Exhibit D” also specifies the granted reduction from the lake. He added 
that the largest reduction was a 60-foot variance being 40 feet from the lake at the 
Cuscowilla Clubhouse. Attorney Haymore clarified that Mr. Sprayberry was 

making a point that PUDs do not have a 100-foot setback, but many of the 
properties have since been rezoned to a district that does have the 100-foot 

setback. When the pools were built, they did not meet the new 100-foot setback. 
Mr. Sprayberry stated that the Clubhouse pool in Cuscowilla is 14 feet from the 

6



lake instead of 40 feet. Member Mitchell stated that when staff visited the site, 
Ms. Jackson asked if they would consider an alternative location. He asked for 

clarification of the number of sets of stairs they are going to build. Mr. Sprayberry 
confirmed that there are three sets of stairs, and the material has already been 

purchased for them. Member hill asked if Mr. Sprayberry if he was familiar with 
when Putnam County changed the lake setback. Mr. Sprayberry confirmed that he 
was aware that the setbacks were changed at the first of the year. Member Hill 

stated that the new setbacks are what they would apply to the property. Mr. 
Sprayberry stated that it would help if the new rules were updated online. Vice-

Chairman Pierson asked if any variances had been granted more than once on 
the list that was provided. Attorney Haymore stated that the list was of all 
variance cases that involve a rear or side yard reduction. He added that he was not 

sure that any came back for a second variance. Vice-Chairman Pierson asked if 
that would or should come into play. Attorney Haymore stated that each variance 

case stands on its own. He added that as Attorney Dillard stated previously, the 
variance that will be granted by this commission is under one or two scenarios. The 
first scenario is having an exceptionally narrow lot. He explained that this lot is 

exceptionally narrow and was platted in 2005 prior to the adoption of the zoning 
ordinance in 2007. He asked for the commission to decide whether it meets criteria 

one or two for a variance. Vice-Chairman Pierson asked where did the burden of 
purchasing that lot and building the size home that is being built come in to the 

variance process versus a smaller house that leaves room for a pool in the original 
plan. Mr. Sprayberry stated that he did not understand the question. Vice-
Chairman Pierson asked if he could have built a smaller house or built on a 

different lot. Attorney Haymore stated that the idea is that if they would have 
built a smaller house, they would have more area to build a pool. He added that 

there is no maximum home size in Putnam County. He clarified that the footprint of 
the home was not dictated by poor judgement but by poor soils. He added that 
there are structures immediately adjacent to the subject property that is closer to 

the lake than what they are requesting. Attorney Haymore asked what the public 
health, safety, and welfare would be served by denying the Sprayberry’s from 

building their pool. Mr. Sprayberry added that his house is 5,400 square feet total, 
including porches, and he did not feel he built an exceptionally large house. 
Attorney Dillard added that the topo map proves that the property meets both 

criteria for a variance. Member Mitchell stated that it was indicated that because 
the lot is nonconforming, criteria one allows for a variance. However, there are 

limits to how much can be approved, and he believes this request exceeds that 
amount. Attorney Dillard stated that the shape and topography justifies why the 
variance should be granted.  

 
Motion to approve the recommendation by staff for denial of a 30-foot rear yard 

setback variance being 35 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 149 
Mags Path [Map 104A, Parcel 102] made by Member Mitchell, seconded by 
Member Farley. 

Voting Yea: Member Hill, Member Farley, Member Mitchell 
Voting No: Vice-Chairman Pierson 

 
 

7



8

lbarb_000
Received



9

lbarb_000
Received



10

lbarb_000
Received



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



Dr. Raymond B. Bedgood 
147 Mags Path 

Eatonton, Georgia 31024 
Ph. 803-640-4503 

 
 

June 3, 2021 
 

To: Putnam County Planning and Development 
      117 Putnam Drive, Suite B 
      Eatonton, Georgia 31024 
 
Re: Josh & Lauren Sprayberry -149 Mags Path rear yard setback variance request for the purposes  
of constructing a pool behind their home 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern:  
 
I have owned the residence located at 147 Mags Path, Eatonton, Georgia 31024 since December 
of 2012, and currently still occupy this residence as a second home. My home at 147 Mags Path is 
adjacent to 149 Mags Path, Eatonton, Georgia 31024. My home at 147 Mags Path shares the same 
driveway entrance with 149 Mags Path.  I do not oppose a rear yard setback variance of 35 feet 
from Lake Oconee for the Sprayberry’s to construct a pool at their home located at 149 Mags Path, 
Eatonton, Georgia 31024.  
 
Thank you for consideration of this letter.  
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
Dr. Raymond B. Bedgood 
 
 
 

40



1
· · · · ·BEFORE THE PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

· 

· 

· · · · · · · · · · TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

· 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Putnam County Administration
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·117 Putnam Drive
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Room 203
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Eatonton, Georgia 31024
· 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Thursday, June 3, 2021

· 

· 

· · ·PRESENT WERE:

· · · · · · · ·TIM PIERSON, Chairman
· · · · · · · ·MAURICE HILL, JR., Member
· · · · · · · ·MARTHA FARLEY, Member
· · · · · · · ·John Mitchell, Member
· 

· 

· · ·Also Present:

· · · · · · · ·Adam Nelson, General Counsel
· · · · · · · ·Lisa Jackson, Director of Planning &
· · · · · · · ·Development
· · · · · · · ·Ben Schmitt, Zoning Coordinator
· · · · · · · ·Courtney Andrews, Assistant Director

· 

· · · · · · · · · · · ·ATHENS REPORTING, LLC
· · · · · · · · · · · ·490 N. Thomas Street
· · · · · · · · · · · Athens, Georgia· 30601
· · · · · · · · · · · · · (770) 225-7663
· · · · · · · · · · · www.athensreporting.com

· · · · · · · Copyright 2021 - Athens Reporting, LLC

41



2
·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·EXHIBITS

·2· · DESCRIPTION· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·PAGE

·3· ·Applicant's:

·4· · 1· ·Exhibit notebook containing Exhibits A-F· · · 5

·5

·6

·7

·8

·9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

42



3
·1· · · · · · · · · · · * * * * *

·2· · · · (Agenda item was heard at 6:32 p.m.)

·3· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· This evening we're going to

·4· ·start with Item No. 5, the request by Josh and

·5· ·Lauren Sprayberry for a rear yard setback variance

·6· ·at 149 Mags Path, presently zoned R-1 at 104A,

·7· ·Parcel 102, District 3.

·8· · · · I think we have three speakers signed up.

·9· ·Whoever is going to go first, please turn the mic on

10· ·for us.

11· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members

12· ·of the Planning Commission.· I'm Doug Dillard with

13· ·Dillard and Sellers.· And Jeff Haymore and I

14· ·represent the applicant.

15· · · · MEMBER HILL:· Turn your mic on.

16· · · · MR. DILLARD:· You're not hearing me?

17· · · · MEMBER HILL:· The button.

18· · · · MEMBER FARLEY:· Hit the button.

19· · · · MS. JACKSON:· Push the button.

20· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Oh, there we go.

21· · · · I'm sorry.· I'll start over.

22· · · · I'm Doug Dillard with Dillard Sellers.· Jeff

23· ·Haymore and I represent the applicant.

24· · · · And we're here today to seek a variance from

25· ·the 65-foot rear yard setback to build a swimming

43



4
·1· ·pool at their residence no closer than 35 feet from

·2· ·the lake.· In other words, we're asking for a

·3· ·30-foot variance.

·4· · · · We expect the evidence to show that this is not

·5· ·uncommon in Putnam County and along -- and along

·6· ·Lake Oconee.· In fact, this property is long,

·7· ·narrow, irregularly shaped.· Their property sits at

·8· ·the end of a cul-de-sac known as Mags Path.· It's a

·9· ·corner lot with additional footage on Capps Lane.

10· · · · This is the subject property.· A lot of

11· ·characteristics severely limit the ability to locate

12· ·a pool.· It's long.· It's narrow.· And I'm going to

13· ·go through why -- why this variance is justified.

14· · · · As you well know, there are two basic reasons

15· ·-- legal bases for the granting of a variance in

16· ·Putnam County.· And it's an either/or situation.

17· ·The first one is whereby the exceptional narrowness,

18· ·shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of

19· ·property.· The second is where there are

20· ·extraordinary or exceptional conditions which create

21· ·an undue hardship on the property owner.

22· · · · Now, the staff report focused on the undue

23· ·hardship.· We think we satisfy both of them.· But

24· ·even if you felt we didn't satisfy two, we feel like

25· ·because of the shape, topography, condition of this

44



5
·1· · · · lot -- and I've got an environmentalist here that

·2· · · · will talk a little bit about that -- we would be

·3· · · · entitled to a variance under that.· We're entitled

·4· · · · to the variance under this first scenario which does

·5· · · · not require a hardship report.

·6· · · · · · ·(Applicant's Exhibit No. 1 was given to the

·7· ·members.)

·8· · · · · · ·MR. DILLARD:· If you turn to Exhibit A of our

·9· · · · filing, you will see that the subject property was

10· · · · platted February of '05 prior to the current

11· · · · ordinance.· Because we've got an exceptionally

12· · · · narrow lot, something the staff report recognizes,

13· · · · but because our lot was platted before the zoning

14· · · · ordinance was adopted, we're entitled to a variance

15· · · · for that reason.

16· · · · · · ·Under scenario two, staff focused on --

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Your mic turned off.

18· · · · · · ·Sorry to interrupt.· Your mic turned off.· You

19· · · · can hit that again, please.

20· · · · · · ·MR. DILLARD:· You want to turn it off?

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· No.· It is off.

22· · · · · · ·MR. DILLARD:· Oh, I turned it off with my

23· · · · notebook, I guess.

24· · · · · · ·Okay.· The decision to locate the house where

25· · · · we did was not due to poor judgment, but due to poor

45



6
·1· ·soils.· The poor soils mean that we could not locate

·2· ·the home closer to Mags Path.· These poor soils

·3· ·confirm our -- our finding of our constitutional,

·4· ·extraordinary and exceptional conditions.

·5· ·Additional extraordinary and exceptional conditions

·6· ·are the narrowness of the lot, multiple street

·7· ·frontages that severely constrain the use of the

·8· ·property.· These are not self-imposed hardships.

·9· · · · To locate the swimming pool elsewhere on the

10· ·property is not physically possible.· Physically

11· ·there's no room for the pool between Mags Path and

12· ·the residential structure because the septic tank is

13· ·located in that area.· And the residential structure

14· ·would otherwise block the sunlight on the pool in

15· ·that area.

16· · · · Legally the zoning ordinance permits accessory

17· ·structures in the side or rear yard of any

18· ·residential district.· Placing the pool between the

19· ·house and the lake is commonplace, as at least three

20· ·existing lakefront homes on Mags Path enjoy swimming

21· ·pools which are located between the homes and Lake

22· ·Oconee.· And that's in our neighborhood.· And you

23· ·can see that on Exhibit B that we have given you.

24· · · · Under Exhibit C, we've now -- with regard to

25· ·the pool, it's 35 feet.· It's no closer to Lake

46



7
·1· ·Oconee than the adjacent residence at 145 Mags Path.

·2· ·And you can see that on Exhibit C, which is

·3· ·attached.

·4· · · · Their residence is 68 feet from the lake.

·5· ·We're 75.· Their hot tub and fireplace is at 32.6

·6· ·feet and 30.6 feet respectively.

·7· · · · We have provided you almost 60 cases where this

·8· ·Commission has approved lake setback variances since

·9· ·2015, including swimming pools.· A summary of these

10· ·variances is attached as Exhibit E in your notebook.

11· ·And you can see that we've got a little bit of --

12· ·there's been a lot of variances granted for pools,

13· ·for fireplaces, and others.

14· · · · For example, this Commission granted a 60-foot

15· ·lake setback variance for Cuscowilla clubhouse pool

16· ·and we're requesting only 30.· To assuage any

17· ·concern about the effect of the pool at 35 feet from

18· ·Lake Oconee, before you is Exhibit E, an

19· ·environmental assessment of Cody Hale.· And I'm

20· ·going to call on Cody here in just a minute to go

21· ·through his evaluation.

22· · · · Finally, we have a written support from

23· ·next-door neighbors at 155 Capps Lane, Robert and

24· ·Anita Headstream.· Their letter is shown as

25· ·Exhibit F.

47



8
·1· · · · We also have the other property that is

·2· ·adjacent on the other side from them that has also

·3· ·given us a letter.· And you have that in your

·4· ·material.

·5· · · · We ask that you grant the respective variance

·6· ·finding that it satisfies scenario one and two for

·7· ·granting a variance.· I reserve the balance of my

·8· ·time for rebuttal.

·9· · · · And I'd like to call Mr. Cody Hale at this time

10· ·for his remarks.· And I understand he has three

11· ·minutes and I can reserve my portion of whatever is

12· ·left of my ten for rebuttal, if any.

13· · · · Is that correct?

14· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· That's correct.· Four

15· ·minutes.

16· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

17· · · · And Cody.

18· · · · MR. HALE:· Good evening.

19· · · · MS. JACKSON:· Hold on for one second.

20· · · · MR. HALE:· Sure.· No problem.

21· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Go ahead.

22· · · · MR. HALE:· Good evening.· My name is Cody Hale.

23· ·I'm a principal at Nutter and Associates.· We're an

24· ·environmental consulting firm.· We've been in

25· ·business for 37 years.

48



9
·1· · · · My area of expertise, I'm a hydrologist and

·2· ·water quality specialist.· I've got about 18 years

·3· ·experience in this area and two advanced degrees,

·4· ·including a Ph.D. in water resources science.

·5· · · · I was asked to evaluate the proposed project

·6· ·with respect to the health and quality at Lake

·7· ·Oconee.· My overall finding with respect to this

·8· ·project is the proposal to locate the pool at

·9· ·149 Mags Path about 35 feet from Lake Oconee poses

10· ·no threat to the lake or the ecosystem that it

11· ·supports.

12· · · · To arrive at that conclusion, I considered not

13· ·only the water quality, the aquatic life, the flora

14· ·and the fauna of the lake, and the hydrology of the

15· ·lake.· I looked at this with respect to not only the

16· ·long-term insulation of the pool and its operations,

17· ·but also while under construction.

18· · · · So several points I would like to make.· The

19· ·proposed site is located wholly in FEMA's Zone X, an

20· ·area of minimal flood hazard.· That means it's above

21· ·the 500-year elevation.· There will be no

22· ·floodwaters interacting with this pool and the lake.

23· ·So no chance for -- through the pool to be

24· ·interacting with lake water as a result of floods.

25· · · · With respect to water quality, we really just

49



10
·1· ·need to look at the volumes of water involved here.

·2· ·The pool is a 20,000-gallon approximately pool.· The

·3· ·lake, 130 billion gallons.· So pollution is -- is a

·4· ·major factor with respect to water quality.

·5· · · · We have 35 feet proposed between the pool and

·6· ·the lake surface.· What would normally be happening

·7· ·with the operation of this pool at most will be

·8· ·incidental splash out; whereby, that water will

·9· ·infiltrate into the soil and never interact with the

10· ·lake.

11· · · · At worst, if the whole pool were to release and

12· ·enter into Lake Oconee, we've got 20,000 gallons

13· ·mixing with a massive volume of water.· Even at the

14· ·local scale right in front of their home and the

15· ·lake there's not going to be any water quality

16· ·effects.

17· · · · When we look at the typical water quality

18· ·parameters, pH, temperature, dissolved oxygen,

19· ·suspended sediment concentration, turbidity,

20· ·nutrients and bacteria, a pool of this size will

21· ·have no effect even in the immediate area within

22· ·Lake Oconee next to this lot.

23· · · · From a hydrology perspective, I think it's

24· ·obvious, but I'll state it for the record.· When we

25· ·have a pool of this size, a 16-by-32 pool, this --

50



11
·1· ·this pool has no -- this structure has no ability to

·2· ·affect the overall hydrology of Lake Oconee or the

·3· ·Georgia Power Company's operation of Wallace Dam.

·4· ·The watershed of Lake Oconee is just simply too

·5· ·large for such a small footprint of this pond -- of

·6· ·this lake to have an effect -- of this pool to have

·7· ·an effect on the lake.

·8· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Thank you very much.

·9· · · · Mr. Sprayberry.

10· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· If you would, open up your

11· ·packet.· You have a series of maps.· I just want to

12· ·walk through those.· They're in the very back of

13· ·your folder.

14· · · · When you look at the first one, it's right here

15· ·on this page here.· It's the one on the left.· This

16· ·is actually our residence and it shows where we have

17· ·35 feet from the seawall to the edge of the pool.

18· · · · It also shows the neighbor's improvements for a

19· ·hot tub and a chimney well within the 30-foot from

20· ·the lake setback.

21· · · · As we go to page two, Wildwood, this is in the

22· ·area of 140 Wildwood.· Their pool deck is 15 feet

23· ·from their property line.· So nowhere near the

24· ·setback variances that we're talking about here for

25· ·our property.

51



12
·1· · · · This pool was built in 2019.· And the comment

·2· ·has been made:· Well, that was in a PUD.· PUD zoning

·3· ·has changed to RM-3.· At the time this pool was

·4· ·constructed, it was under RM-3 zoning, which means

·5· ·the rules for setbacks that were applicable to RM-3

·6· ·should rule.· And the setback in '19 was 100-foot.

·7· ·We're dealing with a pool that's 15-foot from the

·8· ·lake.

·9· · · · As we flip to the next page, here is another

10· ·pool in Cuscowilla.· This is a pool that's 33 feet

11· ·from the lake.· This pool was constructed at a

12· ·previous time, but it just goes to show another

13· ·example of a pool in Putnam County less than 35 foot

14· ·from the lake.

15· · · · As we flip on to the next example, I know one

16· ·of the comments made during the site visit that we

17· ·built our house too big and that we used too much of

18· ·our lot.· Here is another example in Waters Edge,

19· ·another RM-3 zoned community, a house that was built

20· ·in '19, a pool that was built in '19, that is 35

21· ·feet from the lake, similar design and construction

22· ·as to what we seek before you tonight.

23· · · · This house's footprint is 7,100 square foot,

24· ·way substantially more than my 5,300 square foot

25· ·footprint for my residence.· Similar lot

52



13
·1· ·characteristics; very narrow, very open at the end.

·2· ·They had no choice but to put the house where they

·3· ·did so it will fit, just like we did.

·4· · · · That's only half my lot.· I share a driveway

·5· ·with my neighbor because our lot at the other end is

·6· ·too narrow to have two driveways.· So we put the

·7· ·house at the widest point we could within a

·8· ·reasonable setback, 75-foot from the lake, so that

·9· ·we didn't block our neighbor's view to the right

10· ·from the water.

11· · · · As we look at the last page and the last

12· ·example, this is 137 Clearwater Circle.· It is not

13· ·an RM-3 property.· It is zoned the exact same we

14· ·are.· And their pool is 29 foot from the lake.

15· · · · I appreciate your time this evening.

16· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Thank you much.

17· · · · Do we have any questions?

18· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Yes, I do.

19· · · · It was mentioned that one of the three

20· ·properties in the community that have pools -- I

21· ·believe it's Lot 8, was constructed in 2019; is that

22· ·correct?

23· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· In the map package in front of

24· ·you, sir?

25· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Yes.

53



14
·1· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Wildwood, which would be --

·2· ·let's see.· If you flip -- are you talking about in

·3· ·our subdivision or in another subdivision?

·4· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· I --

·5· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· I just want to make sure I've

·6· ·got you.· So you're looking at Chapel Springs?

·7· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Chapel Springs.· I believe

·8· ·this was --

·9· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· That was '19 or '20, yes, sir.

10· ·That's the Capps' lot.· Meredith Capps.

11· · · · And that's their pool in that area, yes, sir.

12· ·That may even be 2020.· That's a recent one.

13· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· And what is the distance from

14· ·the lake?

15· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Let me see.· Give me a second.

16· ·I'll pull it on Google.

17· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Okay.

18· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Her entire property is

19· ·100-foot setback from the pool, but look at my lot

20· ·here and this narrowness.· And this is all my

21· ·drainage septic field because that's where the

22· ·suitables were soiled for our drainage septic field.

23· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Now, did you say that this

24· ·lot constructed -- and the pool constructed in 2019?

25· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· '19 or '20, yes, sir.· But my

54



15
·1· ·examples here were not this pool here --

·2· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Okay.

·3· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· -- in the maps that I

·4· ·presented with the pools that had been built since

·5· ·2019 in Putnam County with that distance from the

·6· ·water.

·7· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· And this one, constructed in

·8· ·2019 or 2020?

·9· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Yes, sir.

10· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· How far back from the lake is

11· ·it?

12· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· It's 100-foot.· But their lot

13· ·is substantially wider and their house is built way

14· ·up here close to the road.· We didn't have that

15· ·option.

16· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· As far as the second lot --

17· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· My driveway when we bought it,

18· ·I bought it with a driveway there, so...

19· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Lot 11, the second one, what

20· ·year was that approved?

21· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· You're talking about the

22· ·Carters' house.· Let me pull that up.

23· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Okay.

24· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Yes, sir.

25· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· For the record, this is Exhibit B

55



16
·1· ·to the notebook that you're looking at; is that

·2· ·right?

·3· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· That is correct.

·4· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· So that is Wilson Carter.

·5· ·Wilson Carter's pool was constructed in 2015.· May

·6· ·of '15.· 75 feet from the shoreline.

·7· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· 75.

·8· · · · And Lot 14?

·9· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Lot 14.· Appears to be 55 feet

10· ·from zoning construction.· 2007.

11· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Now, the other examples that

12· ·you cited which -- were not within your community;

13· ·is that correct?

14· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· That's correct.· But they were

15· ·within Putnam County.· I didn't know the rules

16· ·varied per neighborhood.

17· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Well, quite often the

18· ·ordinances have expired at various communities.

19· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· But all these pools were built

20· ·within the same time period where the same

21· ·ordinances have the same rules.· RM-3 in '19 has the

22· ·same setback requirements as our zoning.

23· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Mr. Sprayberry, can we get

24· ·you on the mic?

25· · · · You're speaking loud.· I appreciate that, but

56



17
·1· ·just to make sure we've got it.· Thank you.

·2· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Understood.

·3· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· Let me speak to Exhibit B, which

·4· ·was your question.· What this shows simply is that

·5· ·since 2015 there have been over 60 cases of which

·6· ·the Commission has granted a variance reducing the

·7· ·rear yard from the lake.· The majority of those

·8· ·zoning districts are R-1, which is what is this

·9· ·zoning.

10· · · · But regardless of which district, they all had

11· ·the 100-foot setback from the lake.· So regardless

12· ·of district.

13· · · · And then the last column of that spreadsheet

14· ·shows you how many feet were reduced.· In some cases

15· ·-- and you can see that it might be 20 feet.· In

16· ·other cases it might be 53 or 52.· The largest

17· ·reduction, in terms of just feet granted, was a

18· ·60-foot reduction from 100 to 40 in the Lake

19· ·Cuscowilla clubhouse pool.

20· · · · With regard to the change in zoning, I think

21· ·the point Mr. Sprayberry was -- I know he was making

22· ·is that PUDs don't have the new 100-foot setback,

23· ·but many of those properties have since been rezoned

24· ·to a district, specifically RM-3, that does have or

25· ·had the 100-foot setback.

57



18
·1· · · · And so, in other words, even though it might

·2· ·have been a PUD at one point, when the pool was

·3· ·built it had been rezoned to a district that had a

·4· ·100-foot setback and, yet, was built in a location

·5· ·within that setback apparently without getting a

·6· ·variance.

·7· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· And to clarify your statement,

·8· ·Cuscowilla's pool is 14 foot from the water.· And

·9· ·I'd be happy to show you on Google Earth.

10· · · · It's not 60.· It's not 40-foot from the pool --

11· ·from the water.· It's 14 feet.· And that pool is

12· ·four or five times the size of what we're

13· ·requesting.

14· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Mr. Sprayberry, when we

15· ·visited your site Ms. Jackson asked if you could

16· ·consider an alternative location.· And I'm wondering

17· ·if you have looked into that.

18· · · · I know you have three sets of steps leading

19· ·down; is that correct?

20· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· I guess.· At least two or

21· ·three, yes, sir.

22· · · · MS. JACKSON:· Three.

23· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Well, I think that's what

24· ·your spouse said --

25· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Yes, sir.

58



19
·1· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· -- was three.

·2· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Yes.

·3· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· And you indicated that they

·4· ·were already under construction?

·5· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Yes, sir.· The steel

·6· ·manufacturer in Athens has already fabricated those

·7· ·steps.· The brick masons are wrapping up the porch

·8· ·so that we can tie those steps in hopefully the next

·9· ·couple of weeks.

10· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Okay.· That's all the

11· ·questions I have.· Thank you.

12· · · · MEMBER HILL:· I have a question.· And that is:

13· ·Are you familiar with when the ordinance changed for

14· ·Putnam County setbacks?

15· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· In terms of from the 100 to

16· ·the 65 recently in the last few months or --

17· · · · MEMBER HILL:· Yes.

18· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Yes, sir.· First of the year.

19· · · · MEMBER HILL:· Okay.· So those are the rules

20· ·that you would be applying to this property?

21· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Yes, sir.· And it'd be helpful

22· ·if those rules were updated online.

23· · · · MEMBER HILL:· Okay.

24· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Because they're not available

25· ·online at this time.· If you pull Putnam County

59



20
·1· ·code, it's still the old code.

·2· · · · MEMBER HILL:· Got you.

·3· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Any other questions?

·4· · · · (No response.)

·5· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Okay.· I've got a couple of

·6· ·questions.· And I don't know who would like to get

·7· ·this.

·8· · · · But of the list that you provided -- and thank

·9· ·you for providing it.· I think 60 projects.· Did any

10· ·of those have a previous variance?

11· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· I'm not quite sure I understand

12· ·your question.

13· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Were they granted a variance

14· ·at some other point within the process?

15· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· You mean a second set --

16· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Is this a second bite at the

17· ·apple?

18· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· Yeah.· Let me explain what that

19· ·spreadsheet shows because I did the work.· I've

20· ·looked at all the minutes that are available on the

21· ·County's website from this Commission from 2015 to

22· ·the present.

23· · · · And for all variance cases involving a rear or

24· ·side yard reduction, I simply list the case, the

25· ·address, the zoning, the requested relief, the

60



21
·1· ·recommendation of staff, the decision of the

·2· ·Commission, and the total net of relief granted, and

·3· ·generally the reason for which the variance was

·4· ·sought.

·5· · · · In terms of your question, did any property

·6· ·come back a second or third time to seek additional

·7· ·relief?

·8· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· The other direction.· Was

·9· ·this variance that you're pointing out a second or

10· ·third bite of the apple?

11· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· We don't know.

12· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· I don't know.

13· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· It could go either way.

14· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Would that come into play;

15· ·should that come into play?

16· · · · And if not, why not?

17· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· Each -- each case stands on its

18· ·own feet.· So before you tonight is a variance

19· ·application to which this Commission applies the

20· ·criteria.

21· · · · As Mr. Dillard was saying, the variance may be

22· ·granted by this Commission under one or two

23· ·scenarios.· And the first scenario is simply if you

24· ·have an exceptionally narrow lot.

25· · · · And I don't think there's any factual dispute

61



22
·1· ·this is an exceptionally narrow lot.· And if that

·2· ·lot was platted prior to the adoption of the zoning

·3· ·ordinance, then the variance may be granted

·4· ·irrespective of hardship or how many times a

·5· ·property has come before this Commission.

·6· · · · What Exhibits A and B show is that this lot was

·7· ·platted in 2005 and the zoning ordinance was adopted

·8· ·in '07.· And so because it's a pre-ordinance plat --

·9· ·platted lot under criteria "A" -- or, excuse me, (1)

10· ·of the zoning ordinance, it is entitled to a

11· ·variance.

12· · · · We think we -- we know we meet that.· The

13· ·question is scenario two.· And that's the one that

14· ·the staff report focused on as to whether or not

15· ·there's undue hardship.

16· · · · So what we're asking is for the Commission to

17· ·make a decision tonight whether -- in its decision

18· ·whether it finds that we meet criteria one or two or

19· ·both.

20· · · · If you find that we meet one, we're entitled to

21· ·the variance.· If you find that we meet two, we're

22· ·entitled to the variance.

23· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Thank you.

24· · · · And you mentioned the size of the house.· Where

25· ·does -- where does the burden of purchasing that lot

62



23
·1· ·and building that size house come in, in your

·2· ·opinion, into this process versus some other smaller

·3· ·house that leaves you room for a pool in the

·4· ·original plan?

·5· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· I'm not sure I understand the

·6· ·question, if you could clarify.

·7· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Okay.· Could you have built

·8· ·a smaller house or built on a different lot, I

·9· ·guess, would be the short answer?

10· · · · MR. DILLARD:· He's trying to say it was

11· ·self-imposed.

12· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· Right.· I think -- that's exactly

13· ·right.· The idea that it's self-imposed in the sense

14· ·of if we had built a smaller house we would have

15· ·more area to build a pool.

16· · · · Number one, there is no maximum home size in

17· ·Putnam County that we are aware of.· What Josh was

18· ·saying is that the footprint of his home was not

19· ·dictated by a misjudgment or poor judgment, but by

20· ·poor soils that dictate where on the lot.· It's an

21· ·exceptionally narrow lot.

22· · · · And so obviously you're not going to put it up

23· ·towards Mags Path.· There's just not enough room.

24· ·That necessitated shifting it towards the lake.

25· · · · In terms of the size of the home, it's a two-

63



24
·1· ·to three-story.· And so the footprint, while large

·2· ·to maybe the average person, compared to other homes

·3· ·immediately adjacent, it's not bigger.

·4· · · · And as Josh was saying, you've got other

·5· ·structures immediately adjacent that are closer to

·6· ·the lake than we're proposing.· And both of those

·7· ·owners -- the ones that would be arguably impacted

·8· ·the most by relief have written letters, which are

·9· ·before you, in support of this variance.

10· · · · And so the question then becomes:· What is the

11· ·public health, safety and welfare being served by

12· ·denying a variance, and, thereby, precluding the

13· ·Sprayberrys from building a pool at the location

14· ·that won't be any harm to the adjacent neighbors?

15· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Okay.

16· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· And to add to that, when you

17· ·talk about size of the house, I've got 5,400 total.

18· ·That includes a porch on the back.· The actual

19· ·structure of the house is a 50-by-60 square --

20· ·square footprint.

21· · · · So, I mean, when you talk about a 3,000 square

22· ·foot house, I don't think that I exceptionally built

23· ·out my lot.· We just have a nice big porch to view

24· ·the water like anybody else would want on this lake.

25· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· I would like to go on record

64



25
·1· ·saying it's an amazing house.

·2· · · · Any other questions?

·3· · · · MEMBER HILL:· I guess the question I have is --

·4· ·this house is beautiful.· And, in my mind, the house

·5· ·has absolutely nothing to do with what we're talking

·6· ·about right now.

·7· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· I agree more than you want to

·8· ·know.

·9· · · · MEMBER HILL:· So the -- because the ordinance

10· ·changed in December -- see, because, either way, it

11· ·doesn't matter to me whether you build a big pool or

12· ·a little pool or a bigger house or smaller house.

13· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Uh-huh.

14· · · · MEMBER HILL:· My concern is by granting or the

15· ·possibility of granting this after the rule had

16· ·changed in December 2020 goes against setting the

17· ·rule in the first place.

18· · · · We set -- the ordinance was changed in December

19· ·2020 for the 65-foot setback.· So then at what point

20· ·do we change that for this property and additional

21· ·properties after the 2020 setting of that variance?

22· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Well, your -- your standards are

23· ·pretty well set out in the ordinance; okay?· The

24· ·topo, shape, narrowness of the lot, et cetera, are

25· ·grounds for approval.· Likewise, except for

65



26
·1· ·hardship, et cetera.· We think there is arguments

·2· ·for both of them.

·3· · · · But the real first argument is this is an

·4· ·unusually shaped lot.· It's narrow and it's long.

·5· ·And we've also got hydraulical -- or topographical

·6· ·issues relative to the implication of the septic

·7· ·system, which has got to be in the front of the

·8· ·house which causes us to locate the house closer to

·9· ·the lake.

10· · · · So, for those reasons, I don't think you have

11· ·to -- you have to worry about uniformity in applying

12· ·the new ordinance.· Each case is going to be

13· ·different factually.· But this is an unusual

14· ·situation because size, shape and topographic --

15· ·topography of this lot.

16· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· And to add to that, most

17· ·people's primary and backup septic drain field are

18· ·kind of like in front of the house and behind the

19· ·house.· If you pull my permit from Putnam County, my

20· ·primary and backup septic permit are in front of the

21· ·house.

22· · · · So if it fails at the one spot closer to the

23· ·house, we go closer to the road due to the

24· ·narrowness of the driveway that was already poured.

25· ·So, like, my lot and the lot on the street, we have

66



27
·1· ·a shared access road that rides the edge of both

·2· ·property lines all the way to a split.· And we

·3· ·didn't start our garage until the far lane after

·4· ·that split.

·5· · · · So, like, we kind of started the house where

·6· ·that was originally forked off from the adjacent

·7· ·property and we tucked it back 10 feet from where

·8· ·their house sat as not to disturb their lake view

·9· ·down the main channel.· So that's kind of where --

10· ·and both of our septics are up front, primary and

11· ·backup.

12· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Plus, we've got -- we've got

13· ·letters of support from both of them on each side of

14· ·the -- of this house.· So we've got support of the

15· ·adjacent neighbors.· We don't have any opposition

16· ·from them.

17· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Any other questions?

18· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Yes.· You indicated that

19· ·because of the -- rule No. 1, non-conforming lot

20· ·allows for variance.· That indeed is true.· However,

21· ·there are limits to the amount of how much can be

22· ·approved.· And it seems to far exceed --

23· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Well, here it's not -- we're not

24· ·talking about the coverage of the lot.· We're

25· ·talking about distance from the lake.· And that's

67



28
·1· ·the only issue that you've got.

·2· · · · And to justify that, you've got to look at the

·3· ·shape and topography of this particular lot.· It's

·4· ·an unusual lot.· It's narrow.· It's long.

·5· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· We understand it's a

·6· ·non-conforming lot.

·7· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Yes, sir.· But in saying all

·8· ·that, we're not -- we're not asking for anything

·9· ·other than to build -- build a pool closer to the

10· ·lake than 65 feet.· That's not unusual.

11· · · · We've got 60 examples over the last several

12· ·years of similar variances being granted.· The most

13· ·recent and the most common is the one at the

14· ·Cuscowilla clubhouse and pool, which is 40 feet off

15· ·the lake.

16· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Any other questions?

17· · · · (No response.)

18· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Okay.· You did have extra

19· ·time.· Did you have anything to --

20· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Well, I mean, was there any

21· ·opposition?

22· · · · I didn't hear any opposition.· Is there any

23· ·opposition?

24· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· I don't think so.

25· · · · MR. DILLARD:· I think we've -- I think we've

68



29
·1· ·told you the case, Mr. Chairman.· And I appreciate

·2· ·your courtesy.

·3· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· I would like to add to

·4· ·Mr. Hill's comment.· 65 feet for a primary structure

·5· ·completely makes sense to me, you know, in terms of

·6· ·houses.

·7· · · · But when we look across this lake and we see

·8· ·fire pits, we see pools, hot tubs, whatever, I think

·9· ·that's a little different scenario from the 65-foot

10· ·rule.· But I agree with you on 65 for primary

11· ·structure, as well.

12· · · · And I know if we pull the Rocker's house up on

13· ·the lake, their whole house is within 30-foot of the

14· ·lake.· So, I mean, I get the primary structure to be

15· ·further away from the water.

16· · · · MR. DILLARD:· And the footprint of this house

17· ·-- while it's a large house, the footprint of this

18· ·house is smaller than the next-door neighbor.

19· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Thank you for your

20· ·arguments, your time.

21· · · · We do have a staff recommendation.· I'm going

22· ·to read the entire note into the record.

23· · · · We've got a request by Josh and Lauren

24· ·Sprayberry for a rear yard setback variance at 149

25· ·Mags Path, presently zoned R-1, Map 104A, Parcel

69



30
·1· ·102, District 3.· The applicants are requesting a

·2· ·30-foot rear setback variance being 35 feet from the

·3· ·nearest point to the lake to construct a 16-foot by

·4· ·32-foot pool.

·5· · · · As it stands, this property has already

·6· ·received three variances for the construction of the

·7· ·primary dwelling unit.· The primary dwelling unit is

·8· ·currently under construction and was granted both a

·9· ·lake and side setback variance on April 7th, 2016

10· ·due to the narrowness of the lot.· The lot width is

11· ·91 feet wide in the buildable area.

12· · · · In addition, the applicants were given some

13· ·relief from the lake setback, which is a minimum of

14· ·100 feet from the nearest point to the lake.· The

15· ·applicants were granted an 8-foot side yard setback

16· ·variance being 12 feet from the left and right side

17· ·property lines and a 25-foot rear yard setback

18· ·variance being 75 feet from the nearest point to the

19· ·lake.

20· · · · The home consists of 9,620 heated square feet,

21· ·1,156 unheated square feet, and 1,165 square feet of

22· ·porches and decks, with a total square footage of

23· ·11,941.· Staff measured the unfinished home with an

24· ·attached garage and found that it is currently 157

25· ·feet in length and 71 feet wide.

70



31
·1· · · · In addition, there will be three sets of stairs

·2· ·sloping from the upper balcony that will extend near

·3· ·or beyond the 65-foot minimum setback from the lake.

·4· ·However, once completed the footprint of the house

·5· ·will exceed the lake side variance that was approved

·6· ·in 2016, which shall not be closer than 65 feet from

·7· ·the nearest point to the lake.

·8· · · · As forementioned, in 2016 the applicants were

·9· ·granted several variances, including lake side

10· ·variance to develop this property.· There was a

11· ·25 percent deviation approved from the 100 feet

12· ·minimum setback from the lake to 75 feet.· And the

13· ·Board of Commissioners has since given a 35 percent

14· ·decrease in the minimum required lake side setback

15· ·to 65 feet.

16· · · · This lot is approximately 230 plus feet in

17· ·length from the buildable area to the lake.· The

18· ·applicant has chosen to maximize the buildable area

19· ·of this parcel with the construction of their

20· ·considerably large new home with no consideration

21· ·for an accessory structure that must meet all

22· ·applicable setbacks as well.

23· · · · Staff, therefore, finds no undue hardship

24· ·related to the property that is not a direct act of

25· ·the applicants.· As a result, this request fails to

71



32
·1· ·meet any of the conditions for granting a variance

·2· ·listed in the Putnam County Code of Ordinances,

·3· ·Chapter 66-157(c).

·4· · · · So the staff recommendation is for denial of a

·5· ·30-foot rear yard setback variance being 35 feet

·6· ·from the nearest point to the lake at 149 Mags Path,

·7· ·Map 104A, Parcel 102.

·8· · · · With that, any comments?

·9· · · · MEMBER FARLEY:· No.

10· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Nothing?

11· · · · MEMBER FARLEY:· No.

12· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Do we have a motion?

13· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· I make a motion that we deny

14· ·the request for the setback variance.

15· · · · MEMBER FARLEY:· I second.

16· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Do we need to clarify or

17· ·should we --

18· · · · MS. JACKSON:· We've got it.

19· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Okay.· So we have a motion

20· ·and a second.

21· · · · Take a vote?

22· · · · MR. NELSON:· Ask for discussion.

23· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Oh, okay.· I'm sorry.

24· · · · Is there any additional discussion on that?

25· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· No.

72



33
·1· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Okay.· And, for the record,

·2· ·a vote of "yes" will mean "no".

·3· · · · MR. SCHMITT:· Mr. Hill?

·4· · · · MEMBER HILL:· Yes.

·5· · · · MR. SCHMITT:· Ms. Farley?

·6· · · · MEMBER FARLEY:· Yes.

·7· · · · MR. SCHMITT:· Mr. Pierson?

·8· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· No.

·9· · · · MR. SCHMITT:· Mr. Mitchell?

10· · · · MEMBER MITCHELL:· Yes.

11· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· We have a three to one no

12· ·vote.· There will be a Commissioners meeting

13· ·June 15th at 6:30 p.m. for any appeals.

14· · · · So if you wish to, it will be right here.

15· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· We'll see you on the 15th.

16· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· I wanted to clarify that.

17· · · · MR. NELSON:· We'll make sure -- you just follow

18· ·the ordinances on the appeal.· You've got a time

19· ·period.· The 15th is established if you meet the

20· ·time period for the appeal.

21· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· So if we appeal within ten days I

22· ·think, which is the standard for appealing a --

23· · · · MR. NELSON:· I believe it's five, Jeff.

24· · · · MS. JACKSON:· Five or ten.· I'm not sure.

25· · · · MR. NELSON:· We'll check the ordinances.

73



34
·1· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· You'll have it tomorrow.

·2· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· I checked it.· It was ten, but to

·3· ·the point that it hasn't updated --

·4· · · · MR. NELSON:· That didn't change.

·5· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· That did not?· So as long as we

·6· ·appeal within the requisite time, we'll be heard on

·7· ·the -- what date; the 15th of June?

·8· · · · MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

·9· · · · MR. NELSON:· Well, I don't want to commit to

10· ·that.· This body doesn't set the agenda before the

11· ·Commissioners and --

12· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· But if the appeal is timely, then

13· ·we'll be heard at a later date is what you're --

14· · · · MS. JACKSON:· At a later date.· The Board of

15· ·Commissioners will set that time.· We don't

16· ·establish their timing.

17· · · · We just have to submit it and they will

18· ·establish the time as to when they can hear it.

19· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Okay.· So as long as we file

20· ·within --

21· · · · MS. JACKSON:· The ten days.

22· · · · MR. DILLARD:· You'll set the hearing.· We'll

23· ·file it in ten days.

24· · · · MS. JACKSON:· Yes.· And the Board of

25· ·Commissioners will let you know what agenda you will

74



35
·1· ·be on.

·2· · · · MR. DILLARD:· Thank you.

·3· · · · MR. SPRAYBERRY:· Thank you for your time.

·4· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· Thank you.

·5· · · · CHAIRMAN PIERSON:· Okay.

·6· · · · MR. HAYMORE:· That's it.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · * * * * *

·8

·9· · · · (Proceedings adjourned at 7:12 p.m.)

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

75



36
·1· · · · · · · · · · C E R T I F I C A T E

·2· ·PUTNAM COUNTY:

·3· ·G E O R G I A:

·4· · · · · · ·The foregoing proceedings were taken down by

·5· ·me as a Certified Court Reporter in the State of

·6· ·Georgia, and the proceedings thereto were reduced to

·7· ·typewriting by me, personally.· I hereby certify that

·8· ·pages 1 through 36, inclusive, comprise a complete and

·9· ·correct transcript of said proceedings.· I further

10· ·certify that I am neither kin nor counsel for any

11· ·party; and am in no way interested in the outcome of

12· ·said case.

13· · · · · · ·This, the 9th day of June, 2021.

14

15

16· · · · · · · · · · · · ·______________________________
· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·KELLEY MARIE NADOTTI, RPR, CCR
17· · · · · · · · · · · · ·Certified Court Reporter
· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·CCR 6256-8388-8026-4192
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



File Attachments for Item:

6. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 6 (Alcoholic 

Beverages) and Chapter 18 (Buildings and Building Regulations) (staff-CA-CC-P&D)

104



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 1 of 7 
 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

Red language equals added text. 

Struck through language equals deleted text. 

 

Chapter 6 - ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES[1]  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (1) ---  

Editor's note— Amend. of 2-18-2003 amended ch. 6 in its entirety and enacted similar 

provisions as set out herein. The former ch. 6 derived from Policy of 8-15-1989, § 3; Ord. of 3-

20-1990, §§ 2, 3, 5, 6, 8; Ord. of 3-5-1992; and Ord. of 9-5-1995.  

Cross reference— Businesses, ch. 22.  

State Law reference— Georgia Alcoholic Beverage Code, O.C.G.A. § 3-1-1 et seq.  

 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 6-2. - Definitions.  

 

(a)  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

 

Alcoholic beverage license means and shall include:  

(1)  License for the retail package sale of malt beverages;  

(2)  License for the retail package sale of wine;  

(3)  License for the retail package sale of distilled spirits;  

(4)  License for the retail consumption on premises of malt beverages and/or wine;  

(5)  License for the retail consumption on premises of distilled spirits. 

 

Brewery means a facility where malt beverages are brewed, bottled, packaged, and 

distributed for wholesale and/or retail distribution. 

 

Brew pub means any eating establishment in which beer or malt beverages are manufactured 

or brewed, subject to the barrel production limitation prescribed in O.C.G.A. § 3-5-36 for retail 

consumption on the premises and solely in draft form. As used in this chapter, the term "eating 

establishment" means an establishment which is licensed to sell distilled spirits, malt beverages, 

or wines and which derives at least 50 percent of its total annual gross food and beverage sales 

from the sale of prepared meals or food. 

 

Distilled spirits means any alcoholic beverage obtained by distillation or containing more 

than 21 percent alcohol by volume, including, but not limited to, all fortified wines.  

 

Farm Winery means any establishment meeting the definition provided by O.C.G.A. § 3-6-

21.1. 

 

105



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Governing authority or county means the Board of Commissioners of Putnam County, 

Georgia.  

 

Malt beverage means any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of any infusion 

or decoction of barley, malt, hops, or any other similar product, or any combination of such 

products in water, containing not more than 14 percent alcohol by volume and including ale, 

porter, brown, stout, lager beer, small beer, and strong beer. The term does not include sake, 

known as Japanese rice wine.  

 

Minor means any person under 21 years of age.  

 

Wine means any alcoholic beverage containing not more than 21 percent alcohol by volume 

made from fruits, berries, or grapes either by natural fermentation or by natural fermentation 

with brandy added. The term includes, but is not limited to, all sparkling wines, champagnes, 

combinations of such beverages, vermouths, special natural wines, rectified wines, and like 

products. The term does not include cooking wine mixed with salt or other ingredients so as to 

render it unfit for human consumption as a beverage.  

 

(b)  All other words and phrases in this chapter shall be as defined in O.C.G.A. title 3, pertaining 

to alcoholic beverages.  

 

(Amend. of 2-18-2003; Ord. of 7-19-2016(1) )  

Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2. 

 

ARTICLE II. - LICENSING 

 

DIVISION 5. - BREWERIES  

 

Section 6-130. - Additional requirements applicable to licenses for Brewery or Brewpub. 

 

(a) Hours of Operation. For the serving of alcohol, Monday through Saturday, beginning at 

8:00 a.m. to 1:30 a.m.; Sunday from 12:30 p.m. until 11:30 p.m. 

 

(b) Brewery production and sales. A license for on-premises production and on-premises sale 

of malt beverages may be authorized by the chairman and county commission to persons 

otherwise entitled to a brewery production and sales of malt beverages license, provided the 

following conditions are met: 

 

(1) The annual fee for a Brewery license shall be based on a schedule developed by 

the Putnam County Clerk’s Office.  Such fee shall be payable to Putnam County.   

 

(2) All brewing operations by a brewery shall be conducted within an enclosed 

building. Production space shall not exceed ________ square feet. 

 

106

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=784151&datasource=ordbank


TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 3 of 7 
 

(3) Consumption on the premises. Brewery shall be permitted to serve malt beverages 

produced at the brewer's licensed premises for consumption on the premises, subject to 

the following restrictions: 

 

a.  Total sales of malt beverages for consumption on the premises and for 

consumption off the premises at the brewer's licensed premises shall be less than 

3,000 barrels in each calendar year in which the licensee is permitted. For 

purposes of this section, barrel shall be defined in accordance with state law. 

 

(4) Consumption off the premises. 

 

a. Total sales of malt beverages for consumption on the premises and for 

consumption off the premises at the brewer's licensed premises shall be less than 

3,000 barrels in each calendar year in which the licensee is permitted. For 

purposes of this section, barrel shall be defined in accordance with state law. 

 

b. Any sales of malt beverages shall not exceed a maximum of 288 ounces 

per consumer per day. 

 

c. Retail sales of growlers in compliance with this section shall be authorized 

for licensees under this section. The filling of growlers by means of a tapped keg 

shall not constitute the breaking of a package as contemplated by O.C.G.A. §§ 3-

3-26, and 3-4-25, or other provisions of this section. Growlers may be filled from 

either kegs procured by the licensee from a duly licensed wholesaler for malt 

beverages not produced on-site or by malt beverages produced on-site, subject to 

and counting towards the 3,000 barrel limitation cited previously. Only 

professionally sanitized and sealed growlers may be filled and made available for 

retail sale. Each growler must be securely sealed with a tamperproof plastic cap 

and removed from the premises in its original sealed condition. Consumption on 

the premises is strictly prohibited. However, samples of tap beers may be made 

available, but shall not exceed more than one ounce nor shall any one individual 

be offered more than three samples within a 24-hour period. 

 

(5) Samples of tap beers may be made available, but shall not exceed more than one 

ounce nor shall any one individual be offered more than three samples within a 24-hour 

period. 

 

(6) All state regulations relating to the manufacture, sale, and distribution of beer, as 

revised from time to time, promulgated by the state revenue department, are hereby 

incorporated into and made a part of this chapter as if fully set out in this section. 

 

(c) Brewpub license. A holder of a brewery license and restaurant retail license may apply 

for a brewpub license. A brewery licensee operating a brewpub shall be authorized to operate an 

eating establishment that shall be the sole retail outlet for such malt beverages and that may offer 

for sale for consumption on the premises any other alcoholic beverages produced by other 

manufacturers which are authorized for retail sale under this chapter, provided that such 

107



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 4 of 7 
 

alcoholic beverages are purchased from a licensed wholesaler and, provided further, in addition 

to malt beverages manufactured on the premises, each brewpub licensee shall offer for sale 

commercially available canned or bottled malt beverages purchased from a licensed wholesale 

dealer. 

 

(1) The annual fee for a brewpub license shall be based on a schedule developed by 

the Putnam County Clerk’s Office.  Such fee shall be payable to Putnam County.  

 

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, a brewery licensee operating 

a brewpub may sell up to a maximum of 155,000 gallons annually of such malt beverages 

manufactured on its premises to licensed wholesale dealers and a maximum of 310,000 

gallons total annually to retail. Under no circumstances shall such malt beverages be sold 

by said licensee to any person holding a retailer's license for the purpose of resale. 

 

(3) The holder of a brewery license who is operating a brewpub shall not be entitled 

by virtue of said brewery license to sell alcoholic beverages by the package for 

consumption off the premises. 

 

(4) A brewery licensee operating a brewpub shall pay all state and local license fees 

and excise taxes applicable to individuals licensed under this chapter as manufacturers, 

retailers and, where applicable, wholesale dealers. 

 

(5) Brewpubs are subject to the hours of operation regulations for restaurant retail 

sales. 

 

(6) A separate license shall be required for each brewery, and a separate application 

shall be made for each such place. 

 

(d) It shall be unlawful for a brewery or brewpub licensee or any employee thereof to be on 

duty at the licensed premises in an intoxicated condition. "Intoxication" shall be defined as when 

a licensee's or employee's alcohol concentration is 0.08 grams or more at any time while on duty. 

For purposes of this section, "on duty" shall mean being paid any salary, wage, or remuneration 

of any kind for services rendered during the time he or she is on the premises; on the licensed 

premises for the benefit of or at the direction of the licensee or its management (other than as a 

customer, patron, or guest) or taking a break during periods of any on-duty employment. 

 

(e) Subject to the provisions in this article, a brewery or brewpub licensee or employee 

thereof shall be permitted to taste malt beverages at the licensed premises for quality control or 

educational purposes only. Such tastings shall not exceed four ounces in volume per hour and 

eight ounces in volume total within a calendar day. 

 

(f) No person or corporation who holds a brewery or brewpub license shall operate a 

brewery or brewpub in such a manner so as to create, promote, suffer or otherwise permit the 

disruption or disturbance of the quiet enjoyment of the owners of properties located in the same 

vicinity and general neighborhood of the business premises of the licensee. 

 

108



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 5 of 7 
 

DIVISION 6.- WINERIES 

 

Section 6-135. – Farm Winery Licenses. 

 

The alcoholic beverage licenses which may be issued to farm wineries under this chapter are: 

 

(a)  Wholesaler of farm winery production. A farm winery shall be granted a wholesale 

license for sale and distribution as provided by O.C.G.A. § 3-6-21.1. Such license shall be issued 

upon application and payment of established fees and upon presentation of a receipt for payment 

of the state annual license tax as provided by the referenced code provisions in this section. 

 

(b) Retail package sales of wine. Each retail package sales license shall require that all sales 

shall be by and through the farm winery tasting room at the site for which said license is issued. 

 

(c) Retail sales of wine. Each license for retail sales of wine and malt beverages for 

consumption on the premises shall require that all consumption shall be at the farm winery site 

for which said license is issued. This site shall include any wedding or dining facilities associated 

with the farm winery. 

 

(d) Multiple farms winery licenses. A farm winery may apply for and, if approved, may be 

issued multiple farm winery licenses as provided in subsections (a) through (c) of this section for 

any single site. At the primary farm winery facility where the wine is produced, such site may be 

licensed for wholesale, package retail sales and on-premises consumption. For any site other than 

the primary farm winery facility where the wine is produced, up to the maximum number of such 

sites as may be permitted by state statute, such site may be licensed for package retail sales and 

on-premises consumption. The license created in accordance with this article shall be limited to 

farm winery tasting rooms licensed by the state in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 3-6-21.1 et seq., 

and the licensee shall be permitted to perform only acts allowed in accordance with such statutes. 

No license is hereby created authorizing any other use. 

 

(e) Alternative provision. The first license at any site shall have a cost equal to the cost of the 

county alcoholic beverage license at the time of the application. Any license for two or more 

categories of sale shall require payment of the additional license fees as provided in the county 

fee schedule. 

 

(f) Ratio of sales. There shall be no specified or required ratio of alcohol sales to any other 

income for farm winery operations. Farm wineries shall operate on such days and hours as are 

provided by the Georgia Farm Winery Act, O.C.G.A. § 3-6-21.1 et seq., as amended from time 

to time. 

 

(g) Renewals. All applications for renewal of a farm winery license or licenses shall be 

accompanied by a copy of the current state license. Failure to present a valid copy of a current 

and valid state license will result in a refusal to renew license. Timely application for renewal is 

determined by the date on which a complete and proper application has been submitted. 

 

109



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 6 of 7 
 

(h) Premises consumption. A farm winery may apply for a license for on-premises 

consumption of distilled spirits under the terms as provided under article III of this chapter, retail 

sales of distilled spirits for consumption on the premises. 

 

(i) State statutes. A farm winery may apply for a license for on-premises consumption of 

wine and malt beverages (not produced under the Georgia Farm Winery Act O.C.G.A. § 3-6-

21.1 et seq.) under the terms as provided under article IV, retail sales of malt beverages and wine 

for consumption on the premises. 

 

(j) Compliance with article. All alcoholic beverage sales other than farm winery sales shall 

be in accordance with article I, in general, of this chapter. 

 

Section 6-136. - Additional requirements applicable to licenses for Farm Winery. 

 

(a) Hours of Operation. For the serving of alcohol, Monday through Saturday, beginning at 

8:00 a.m. to 1:30 a.m.; Sunday from 12:30 p.m. until 11:30 p.m. 

 

(b) Farm Winery production and sales. A license for on-premises production and on-

premises sale of wine may be authorized by the chairman and county commission to persons 

otherwise entitled to a winery production and sales of wine license, provided the following 

conditions are met: 

 

(1) The annual fee for a Farm Winery license shall be based on a schedule developed 

by the Putnam County Clerk’s Office.  Such fee shall be payable to Putnam 

County.   

 

(2) A licensed Georgia farm winery may offer wine samples and make retail sales of 

its wine and the wine of any other Georgia farm winery in tasting rooms at 

the winery and at five additional locations in Georgia for consumption on the 

premises and in closed packages for consumption off the premises; provided, 

however, that notwithstanding any other provisions of this title to the contrary, if 

the licensee is also issued a license pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 3-4-24, no more than 

one tasting room for such Georgia farm winery shall be authorized and such 

tasting room shall be located on the licensed premises of the Georgia 

farm winery; and provided, further, that the Georgia farm winery shall not sell its 

wine or the wine of any other farm winery in more than one tasting room, and 

such tasting room shall be located on the licensed premises of the Georgia 

farm winery. For purposes of this subsection, the term "licensed premises" shall 

mean the premises for which the farm winery license is issued or property located 

contiguous to the farm winery and owned by the farm winery. 

 

(3) A licensed Georgia farm winery may sell up to 24,000 gallons per calendar year 

of its wine at wholesale within the state; provided, however, that such licensee 

shall not be authorized to sell its wine at wholesale unless such licensed 

farm winery shall have first offered its products for sale at a fair market wholesale 

110



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 7 of 7 
 

price to a licensed Georgia wholesaler and such wholesaler does not accept the 

farm winery's product within 30 days of such offer. 

 

(4) A licensed Georgia farm winery may also sell, deliver, or ship its wine in bulk or 

in bottles, whether labeled or unlabeled, in accordance with regulations of the 

Georgia Revenue Commissioner, to Georgia farm winery licensees and to acquire 

and receive deliveries and shipments of such wine made by Georgia 

farm winery licensees. 

 

(5) A Georgia farm winery licensee shall be authorized, in accordance with 

regulations of the Georgia Revenue Commissioner, to acquire and receive 

deliveries and shipments of wine in bulk from out-of-state producers and shippers 

in an amount not to exceed 40 percent of its annual production, provided that the 

Georgia farm winery licensee receiving any such shipment or shipments files 

timely reports with the Georgia Revenue Commissioner and keeps such records of 

the receipt of such shipment or shipments as may be required by the Georgia 

Revenue Commissioner. 

 

(6) A Georgia farm winery licensee may sell its wine and the wine of any other 

farm winery licensee for consumption on the premises at facilities located on the 

premises of the winery or on property located contiguous to the winery and 

owned by the winery or by an affiliate of the winery. 

 

(7) A Georgia farm winery licensee may sell distilled spirits, malt beverages, and 

wines not produced by a farm winery for consumption in its tasting rooms and at 

facilities located on the premises of the winery or on property located contiguous 

to the winery and owned by the winery or by an affiliate of the winery, provided 

that any alcoholic beverages sold pursuant to this paragraph shall be purchased by 

the winery from a licensed wholesaler at wholesale prices. 

 

(8) For the purposes of this section, affiliate means any person controlling, controlled 

by, or under common control with a farm winery. 

 

111



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 1 of 18 
 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 

 

Red language equals added text. 

Struck through language equals deleted text. 

 

Chapter 18 - BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS[1]  

Footnotes:  

--- (1) ---  

Editor's note— A resolution of July 17, 2007, repealed ch. 18, which consisted of §§ 18-1—18-

75, and enacted new provisions to be designated ch. 18, §§ 18-1—18-84, to read as herein set 

out. Former ch. 18 pertained to similar subject matter and derived from a resolution of Aug. 20, 

1996; and an amendment of Nov. 1, 2002.  

Cross reference— Environment, ch. 30; floods, ch. 34; planning, ch. 42; roads and bridges, ch. 

46; solid waste, ch. 50; zoning, ch. 66.  

State Law reference— Water Well Standards Act of 1985, O.C.G.A. § 12-5-120; access to and 

use of public facilities by physically handicapped persons, O.C.G.A. § 30-3-1 et seq.; ordinances 

relating to repair, closing and demolition of dwellings unfit for human habitation or buildings or 

structures that imperil health, safety or morals, O.C.G.A. § 36-61-11; authority to demolish 

structures where drug crimes are committed, O.C.G.A. § 41-2-7; authority to repair, close or 

demolish unfit buildings or structures, O.C.G.A. § 41-2-7; county or municipal ordinances 

relating to unfit buildings or structures, O.C.G.A. § 41-2-9 et seq.; fire escapes in buildings, 

O.C.G.A. § 8-2-50.  

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

Sec. 18-1. - Self-inspection exemption.  

The Board of Commissioners, pursuant to 1996 Ga. Laws, page 1632, exempts the county from 

the alternative inspection procedure as set forth in O.C.G.A. § 8-2-26(d).  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Secs. 18-2—18-35. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE II. - CONSTRUCTION CODES[2] 

Footnotes:  

--- (2) ---  

State Law reference— Construction standards generally, O.C.G.A. § 8-2-1 et seq.; minimum 

state construction codes, O.C.G.A. § 8-2-25; enforcement of minimum state construction codes, 

O.C.G.A. § 8-2-26; authority to adopt technical codes, Ga. Const. art. IX, § II, ¶ III(a)(12).  

Sec. 18-36. - Adoption of technical codes.  

112



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 2 of 18 
 

The following technical building and construction codes, including appendices where noted, as 

set forth in O.C.G.A. § 8-2-20 are adopted by reference as the official codes of the county and 

may be amended for later editions or amendments as required by the Georgia Uniform Codes 

Act, O.C.G.A. § 8-2-25:  

(a)  International Building Code (International Code Congress);  

(b)  National Electrical Code;  

(c)  International Fuel Gas Code;  

(d)  International Mechanical Code;  

(e)  International Plumbing Code;  

(f)  International Residential Code;  

(g)  International Energy Conservation Code;  

(h)  International Fire Code;  

(i)  International Property Maintenance Code;  

(j)  International Existing Buildings Code.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-37. - Enforcement of article.  

(a)  This article shall be enforced by the planning and development department. Citations 

for violations may be issued by this department.  

(b)  Any person violating this article shall be tried before the magistrate or state court of the 

county. Upon conviction, a violation of this article may be punished as provided in chapter 1, 

section 1-13.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-38. - Quality and workmanship not regulated.  

Quality control of materials and workmanship is not within the purview of this chapter except as 

it relates to the purposes stated herein. 

Sec. 18-39. - No warranty or guaranty. 

The inspection or permitting of any building, system or plan, under the requirements of this 

chapter shall not be construed in any court as a warranty of the physical condition of such 

building, system or plan or their adequacy, nor any guaranty of compliance with the codes. 

Neither Putnam County, nor any employee thereof, shall be liable in tort for damages for any 

defect or hazardous or illegal condition or inadequacy in such building, system or plan, nor for 

any failure of any component of such, which may occur subsequent to such inspection or 

permitting. 

Sec. 18-40. - Other applicable ordinances. 

113



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 3 of 18 
 

The applicant is advised that other applicable provisions, including special agricultural setback 

provisions, exist in the Putnam County Zoning Ordinance, and that other requirements contained 

in the Putnam County development regulations, the Putnam County Flood Damage Prevention 

Ordinance, and the Putnam County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Ordinance may apply, and 

the applicant is advised to check with the planning and development department. Issuance of a 

building permit is not a guaranty that the erection of the structure is lawful and in compliance 

with all other applicable ordinances. 

Sec. 18-41. - Restriction on employees  

No employee connected with the building inspections department shall be financially interested 

in the furnishing of labor, material, or appliances for the construction, alteration, or maintenance 

of a building, structure, service, system, or in the making of plans or of specifications thereof 

unless he is the owner of such, nor shall any employee engage in any other work which is 

inconsistent with his duties or conflict with the interests of the department. 

Sec. 18-42. - Supremacy and preemption. 

The provisions of this chapter shall not be held to deprive any federal or state agency, or Putnam 

County, of any power or authority which it had on the effective date of the adoption of this 

chapter or of any remedy then existing for the enforcement of its orders, nor shall it deprive any 

individual or corporation of its legal rights as provided by law. 

Secs. 18-43—18-70. - Reserved.  

ARTICLE III. - BUILDING PERMITS AND REQUIREMENTS  

Sec. 18-71. - Building permit required.  

 (a) It shall be unlawful for any building to be located, erected, moved, expanded or structurally 

altered for a cost in excess of $1,000.00 unless a permit is specifically required herein (ex. 

temporary electrical pole, moving building on or across public thoroughfares, etc.) without 

obtaining a building permit issued by the planning and development department in conformity 

with this chapter. All permits issued shall be posted at the construction entrance and displayed on 

the premises described in the permit during construction or reconstruction. Any building permit 

shall automatically expire six months from the date of issuance if construction has not begun or 

has been abandoned. Construction or reconstruction not in compliance with the building permit 

issued, or without a building permit as required in this section, shall constitute a misdemeanor 

for which the violator, if found guilty, may be punished as provided by law. Each day upon 

which a violation occurs shall be considered a separate offense under this section.       

 

(a)     Any owner, authorized agent, or contractor who desires to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, 

or change the occupancy of a building or a structure, or to erect, install, enlarge, alter, repair, 

convert or replace any electrical, gas, mechanical, or plumbing system, the installation of which 

is regulated by the standard building codes, or to cause any such work to be done, shall first 

make application to the director and obtain the required permit for the work. Any time a new 

non-residential business is beginning operation in an existing structure, or any time a new tenant 

is to occupy an existing non-residential structure, such person or entity shall be required to notify 

the director and obtain an inspection prior to obtaining a business license and/or beginning 

114



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 4 of 18 
 

tenancy (such requirements shall not apply to residential tenants such as apartment renters). It 

shall be unlawful to commence construction of a building or structure requiring a permit without 

first obtaining a permit, as required herein. It shall be unlawful to commence any land 

disturbance activity for the construction of any building; to commence construction of any 

building; to commence the moving or alteration of any building; or to commence the 

development of land for a use not requiring a building, until all necessary permits for such work 

have been issued. Building permits shall be required as listed in this chapter, and land 

disturbance permits as required by the Putnam County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

Ordinance. All land development or construction shall comply with the codes and ordinances in 

effect in Putnam County at the time the permit is issued. Any building permit shall automatically 

expire six months from the date of issuance if construction has not begun or has been abandoned. 

Construction or reconstruction not in compliance with the building permit issued, or without a 

building permit as required in this section, shall constitute a misdemeanor for which the violator, 

if found guilty, may be punished as provided by law. Each day upon which a violation continues 

shall be considered a separate offense under this section.       

 

(1)  Lot dimensions with boundary line prepared by a licensed surveyor in addition to 

the site plans and drawings described above, to ascertain precise dimensions;  

(2)  Shape, size, height and location of the structures proposed to be erected, 

demolished, altered or moved, and of any buildings already on the lot; yard dimensions 

and the use of structures, including the number of dwelling units within each structure;  

(3)  Easements (public and private);  

(4)  Watercourses;  

(5)  Fences;   

(6)  Street names and street right-of-way lines;  

(7)  Other information regarding abutting property as directly affects the application; 

and   

(8)  Identity of owner and location by tax map and parcel number, verified by the tax 

assessor's office on the permit form.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-72. - Permit applications.  

(a)  Application required. Prior to the issuance of any permit required or authorized by the 

building code, an application therefore shall be submitted in writing to the planning and 

development department on forms furnished for such purpose by the department. Such 

application shall be signed in the spaces provided by the qualified applicant, the owner of the 

property or his authorized agent, and, where required, the architect or engineer. The applicant 

shall become the permit holder upon issuance of a permit and shall be held responsible for the 

supervision and conduct of all work covered thereby. The application shall serve as the basis 

for determination of issuance of a permit and shall be factual evidence upon which any 

interested party may rely as to the information provided thereon.  

115



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 5 of 18 
 

(b)   Application contents.  Building permit applications shall be accompanied by the 

following:  

(1) a copy of a dimensional sketch or preliminary site plan, signed by the owner or his 

authorized agent, and include, at a minimum, 

a. Lot dimensions with boundary line prepared by a licensed surveyor in addition to 

the site plans and drawings described above, to ascertain precise dimensions;  

b. Shape, size, height and location of the structures proposed to be erected, 

demolished, altered or moved, and of any buildings already on the lot; yard 

dimensions and the use of structures, including the number of dwelling units within 

each structure;  

c. Easements (public and private)  

d. Watercourses 

 (2) Copy of Recorded Plat 

 (3) Identity of owner and location by tax map and parcel number 

(4)  Fences;  A septic permit from the health department (if on septic); 

(5)  Street names and street right-of-way lines; A sewer tap approval from the applicable 

water provider if on sewer and not in an approved subdivision (i.e. is on an existing lot); 

(6)  Other information regarding abutting property as directly affects the application; A 

water tap permit approval from the applicable water provider if not in an approved subdivision 

(i.e. is on an existing lot); 

(7)  Identity of owner and location by tax map and parcel number, verified by the tax 

assessor's office on the permit form.  A driveway permit may be required from the department 

of transportation if the property fronts on a state highway or road or any access is desired to a 

state highway, or from Putnam County if the property fronts on a county road or any access 

is desired from a county road, and those departments should be consulted; 

(8) Such other information as may be requested for determining whether the provisions of this 

chapter are being observed and complied with; and 

(10) Such other information as may be requested by the building official or elsewhere 

in this chapter. 

(c)  Changes to application. In the event of a change in any material fact given in the 

application, which served as a basis for issuing the permit, the permit holder shall immediately 

file an amended application detailing such changed conditions. If the change in the application 

is a change in the person responsible for the work, the owner shall immediately stop the work 

and notify the planning and development department in writing, detailing such changed 

conditions and any other information as required or, in lieu thereof, a new permit application 

shall be filed immediately by a new qualified applicant. If such changed conditions are 

determined to be in compliance with the building code and other applicable regulations, an 

amended building permit will be issued at a minimum fee if the changed conditions shall not 

be greater than those permitted in the original permit.  

(d)  Qualifications and responsibilities of applicant.  

116



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 6 of 18 
 

(1)  Except as provided in subsection (c)(2), (c)(3) or (c)(4) of this section, application 

for permits shall be accepted from and permits issued only to contractors who are 

qualified as provided in this article to perform the kind of work included in the particular 

permit for which application is made. It shall be the duty and responsibility of every 

contractor, builder, electrician, plumber or mechanical contractor who shall make 

contracts for the erection or construction or repair of buildings, or any portion thereof for 

which a permit is required, and every contractor or builder making such contracts and 

subletting the same, or any part thereof, shall be required to:  

a.  Purchase and maintain an occupational license. The fee is as listed in the 

schedule of fees. Such license shall be registered with the planning and development 

department.  

b.  Any contractor not required by law to be licensed by the state must purchase 

and maintain a license bond (or an equivalent) in the amount of $25,000.00. Such 

bond shall be conditioned that all work performed by the contractor or under his 

supervision shall be performed in accordance with the provisions of this building 

code and other pertinent laws and regulations. He They will pay all fees and penalties 

properly imposed upon him them for violations of the building code. The planning 

and development department shall be so named on the license bond.  

(2)  The owner of commercial property, except that designated for farming and 

agricultural purposes, may make application for a permit, supervise and do the work in 

connection with construction, repair, alteration or maintenance where the total value of 

such work, including labor and materials, does not exceed $1,000.00, and where none of 

the work to be done is required by law to be performed by a licensed contractor. All work 

performed in the case of buildings or structures classified as group E-educational, or 

group I-institutional or group A-assembly occupancy shall be performed only by a 

licensed contractor.  

(3)  The owner of residential or agricultural property may make application for a permit, 

supervise and do the work in connection with the construction, maintenance, repair, 

alteration or addition to a dwelling, including farm and agricultural buildings and 

structures, regardless of the size or cost of such work under the following conditions:  

a.  Such dwelling, farm or agricultural building is intended for the use and or 

occupancy of the owner making such application and not intended for sale or public 

use. In this connection, no more than one permit shall be issued to an owner for the 

construction of a new dwelling (not including permits issued for alterations, additions 

and repairs to an existing dwelling) during any 12-month period.  

b.  The planning and development department may require proof that the applicant 

is the owner of the dwelling upon or in which construction is to take place, and 

nothing in this section is to be construed to invalidate the requirement for applying 

for and obtaining permits, paying fees, calling for required inspections, and 

complying with all plans, specifications, codes, laws and regulations applicable.  

(4)  A maintenance craftsman may obtain a permit for work to be done by him on the 

building or premises owned by his employer where such work is in the same category as 

117



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 7 of 18 
 

the craftsman is qualified and where such work is limited to the maintenance, repair and 

minor alterations.  

(5)   The director shall act upon an application for a permit without unreasonable or 

unnecessary delay, within 30 days from the submission of an application deemed 

complete. If the director is satisfied that the work described in an application for a permit 

and the contract documents filed therewith conform to the requirements of the standard 

building codes and other pertinent laws and ordinances, he shall issue a permit to the 

applicant. 

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-73. - Permit fees.  

(a)  Permits not valid. No building, construction, electrical, mechanical, miscellaneous or 

other permit issued by the planning and development department shall be valid until fees 

prescribed by this section shall have been paid.  

(b)  Permit fees for work commenced prior to obtaining permits. In all cases where building, 

construction, electrical, plumbing, mechanical or other work for which a permit is required is 

commenced before such permit is obtained, any permit fee due to the county for a permit for 

such work shall be twice the amount of the regular permit fee specified in this article which 

would have been due had such permit been obtained prior to commencing work. In no event 

shall such fee be less than an amount listed in the schedule of fees in addition to the regular 

permit fee. Payment of such increased fee shall not be a defense in any prosecution for any 

such work, for which a permit is required. Any work performed prior to the issuance of a 

building permit that has not been inspected by the county, and that is not easily inspected, or 

has been covered up, shall be inspected by an independent engineer that can certify that such 

work complies with the building code.  

(c)  Reinspection fees. When extra inspection trips are made for a permit holder due to any 

of the following reasons, an addition fee in an amount listed in the schedule of fees shall be 

charged for each such additional inspection:  

(1)  Wrong address given on call for inspection;  

(2)  Work not ready for inspection at time specified;  

(3)  Required corrections not made within time specified;  

(4)  Failure to request required inspections; and  

(5)  Additional work done after inspection has been made.  

(d)  Refund of fees. Where no work has been done under a valid permit for which fees have 

been paid and a written request for refund of fees is made by holder thereof within six months 

of the date of original issuance, the  of the planning and development department may 

authorize the refund of 85 percent of such fee upon surrender of the permit and cancellation 

of the permit, providing no refund shall be made of a plan review fee.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

118



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 8 of 18 
 

Sec. 18-74. - Schedule of building or construction permit fees.  

For the purpose of determining fees, floor area shall be the gross overall outside floor area of a 

building at each story, including all portions under a roof. Where a building permit fee is paid for 

a new building or addition, separate permits and fees shall not be required for fences, walls, 

awnings, masonry fence walls, site work or other components normal to building construction. 

Separate fees shall be paid for electrical, plumbing, mechanical, miscellaneous or other permits 

shown elsewhere in this schedule. Fees can be found in the schedule of fees located at the 

planning and development department. Permit fees shall be as follows:  

(a)  New buildings and additions.  

(1)  For each square foot of enclosed area or fractional part of residential space, for each story 

below and above grade.  

(2)  For each square foot of garage, storage building or barn space.  

(3)  For each square foot of open shed space.  

(4)  For commercial space.  

(b)  New construction other than buildings, including towers, pylons, storage tank foundations, 

structural elements of industrial complexes not within a building, and similar construction.  

(c)  Alterations (including major repair to buildings or other structures).  

(d)  Moving buildings/modular and manufactured homes on or across public thoroughfares, 

when the move is not in conjunction with a building permit.  

(e)  The manufactured home fee, including 200-amp electrical.  

(f)  Masonry fences and walls: For each 50 linear feet or fractional part thereof.  

(g)  Swimming pools: For all permanent swimming pool installations aboveground or in-

ground, including fencing.  

(h)  Demolition of buildings and for demolition of structures other than buildings.  

(i)  Temporary permits.  

(j)  Minimum fee for any building permit, based upon the fee formulas contained in 

subsections (b) through (l) of this section.  

(k)  Golf course or recreational development area: A base fee plus a per acre fee.  

(l)  Development/subdivision permit: A flat fee. See chapter 28, development regulations.  

(m)  Electrical permit fees. Electrical permit fees for service installations (conductors and 

equipment for delivering energy from the electrical utility supply system, residential and 

commercial). Each service or subservice requiring a utility-owned meter shall be considered a 

service for fee purposes.  

119



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 9 of 18 
 

(n)  Plumbing permit fees. Plumbing permit fees for new residential or commercial service 

shall include a base fee and a per fixture fee. Renovations or additions to a room shall be charged 

a fee.  

(o)  Mechanical permit fees. Mechanical permit fees for new residential or commercial service 

HVAC system and charges per ton of air conditioning equipment and 20,000 BTU of heat 

equipment. Additions or changes of equipment shall require a fee.  

(p)  Renewal of permits.  

(q)  Reinspection fees. Fees for reinspection shall be an amount listed in the schedule of fees 

and charges.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-75. - Plans and specifications.  

(a)  Each commercial and multifamily application for a permit shall be accompanied by two 

sets of plans and specifications, except as outlined in section 18-74 75.  

(b)  All plans for buildings, structures, additions or alterations to group E-educational, group 

I-institutional, and group A-assembly occupancy, regardless of size, and all buildings or 

structures three or more stories in height or greater than 5,000 square feet in area (except those 

classified as one-family and two-family dwellings, expressly exempted by the chief building 

inspector, and those buildings or structures for farm or agricultural purposes), such designer 

shall be an architect or engineer legally registered under the laws of the state regulating the 

practice of architecture or engineering, and shall affix his official seal to such plans, 

specifications and accompanying data.  

(c)  Plans shall be original drawings or prints of the structure, mechanically reproduced at 

the original scale on substantial paper, showing completely all foundations, wall sections, 

floor plans, roof plans and elevations at a convenient scale; a plot plan showing the actual 

shape and dimensions of the lot to be built upon; the exact sizes and location on the lot of the 

buildings or structures to be erected or altered, the location and number of required off-street 

parking and loading spaces; such other information as may be required to determine 

compliance with the building code and this chapter; complete structural, mechanical, 

plumbing and electrical plans; and such other reasonable information as may be required to 

clearly show the nature, character and location of the proposed work. Computations, stress 

diagrams, shop drawings, floor plans of existing buildings to which additions are proposed 

and other data necessary to show compliance with the building code shall be included when 

required by the planning and development department. Any specifications in which general 

expressions are used to the effect that "work shall be done in accordance with the building 

code" or "to the satisfaction of the of the planning and development department," shall be 

deemed imperfect and incomplete, and every reference to the building code shall be by section 

or subsection number applicable to the materials to be used, or to the methods of construction 

proposed.  

(d)  With respect to commercial and multifamily, the director may authorize the issuance of a 

permit without plans and specifications for minor alterations, repairs and small or unimportant 

work, but in no instance where the work is of a structural nature. The issuance of a permit 

120



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 10 of 18 
 

without plans and specifications will still require the necessary inspections and compliance with 

the building code and all other pertinent regulations. 

(e)     It shall be unlawful to use roof or wall covering material that has not been approved by the 

applicable building code as exterior covering material except in the event a building is damaged 

by natural or manmade disaster, or suffers a roof leak, other leak, or other damage. In such cases, 

temporary materials may be applied to a building to provide a temporary repair for no more than 

60 days from the date of the damage. One 60-day extension can be requested from the director, 

for cause, if the structure is not able to be properly repaired with approved exterior covering 

material within 60 days. Examples of materials that are not approved as exterior covering 

materials include, but are not limited to, tarpaulins, plastic sheeting, and OSB. This restriction 

shall not apply to [a] building, such as outbuildings and storage buildings. 

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-76. - Examination of plans.  

All plans and applications shall be examined in the order received, except those plans that have 

been previously examined. If the application or the plans do not conform to the requirements of 

all pertinent laws, such applications shall be rejected in writing, stating the reasons therefore. 

Such plans may be returned for correction of the tracings. Penciled notations on such plans may 

be accepted for only minor corrections. If the application, plans and specifications meet the 

approval of the building code, the plans shall be stamped "approved," and the permit shall be 

issued.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)

Sec. 18-77. - Approval of other authorities.  

In addition to verifying compliance with the building code, the planning and development 

department shall require that the laws, rules and regulations of any other regulatory authority 

having jurisdiction, where such laws, rules and regulations are applicable and are known, shall 

be satisfied before a permit shall be issued. The department shall require such evidence, as is 

reasonable, to show such other approvals. The department shall not thereby be held responsible 

for enforcement of such other regulations it is not specifically authorized to enforce. The 

following are some, but not necessarily all, other agencies having jurisdiction on some or all 

projects:  

(1)  The county road department, the sheriff's office, the state highway department, and 

the City of Eatonton's police department for the moving of buildings, structures and heavy 

equipment over, temporary construction over, storage of material on, construction 

operations over or temporary blocking of streets or other public spaces;  

(2)  The county road department for the installation of a driveway culvert installed on 

county property;  

(3)  The county health department for the permitting of wells, septic tanks and water 

and sewer systems;  

121



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 11 of 18 
 

(4)  The land department of Georgia Power for the permitting of docks, ramps and 

bulkheads that are within their jurisdiction; and  

(5)  The state highway department for permitting driveway approaches on any state 

road.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-78. - Permit types.  

(a)  Building permits, as issued by the planning and development department shall be 

required for:  

(1)  The erection or construction of any building or structure and the adding to, 

enlarging, repair, improving, altering, covering or extending of any building or structure;  

(2)  The moving of any building or structure within, into, through, or out of the county;  

(3)  The demolition of any building or structure;  

(4)  The erection, remodeling, relocating, repair, altering or removal of any sign; or  

(5)  The installation or alteration of a swimming pool.  

(b)  Electrical permits shall be required for the installation, repair, alteration, addition to or 

changing of any electrical wires, fixtures, apparatus, raceways, conduit or any part thereof, 

which generates, transmits, transforms or utilizes electrical energy in any form for lights, heat 

or power.  

(c)  Plumbing permits shall be required for the installation, repair, alteration, addition to or 

changing of any plumbing system or appurtenances thereto, domestic water supply or 

distribution systems, plumbing fixtures and traps, sanitary and storm sewers, liquid waste 

piping, or water and sewer-using equipment. No plumbing permit shall be required for the 

repair of leaks, unstopping of sewers or waste pipes, repair or replacement of faucets or water 

closets, repair of valves, repair or cleaning of septic tanks.  

(d)  Mechanical permits shall be required for the installation, alteration or major repair of:  

(1)  Boilers or steam-activated machinery, including the appurtenances and piping 

thereto;  

(2)  Heat-producing appliances, furnaces or other heating apparatus, including piping 

or flues, or accessories thereto, except electrical and other appliances that are fully 

portable and require no physical connection to piping or flues;  

(3)  Air conditioning or refrigeration systems;  

(4)  Mechanical ventilating systems, including air distribution ductwork;  

(5)  Gas systems or piping;  

(6)  Elevators, lifts, escalators, hoists or other transporting devices;  

(7)  Paint-spraying equipment or other process equipment that produces explosive or 

flammable vapors;  

122



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 12 of 18 
 

(8)  Fire sprinklers, standpipes, fire hose cabinets or other fire protection apparatus; and  

(9)  Mechanical equipment of any kind that is regulated by the building code.  

(e)  Renewal of permits.  

(f)  Reinspection fees.  

(g)  Miscellaneous permits include, but are not limited to, tents for assembly, home 

occupation licenses, occupation registration, temporary camper, carnivals, rodeos, sporting 

events, public events (specific duration of less than one year), and tent revivals.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)

Sec. 18-79. - Requirements for safe work. 

All work performed relating to the construction, alteration, repair, enlargement, restoration, 

relocation or moving of buildings or structures, including work on the building or structure itself, 

or the building or structure's electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system, shall be done in a 

safe manner, in compliance with the requirements of the standard building codes and this article. 

Work not done in compliance with these requirements, whether it requires a permit, may be 

subject to citation, stop work order, or other civil remedy by the director. 

Sec. 18-80. - Existing buildings.  

(a) General. Alternations, repairs or rehabilitation work may be made to an existing 

structure, building, electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system without requiring the 

building, structure, plumbing, electrical, mechanical or gas system to comply with all the 

requirements of the technical codes, provided that the alteration, repair or rehabilitation work 

conforms to the requirements of the technical codes for new construction. The director shall 

determine the extent to which the existing system shall be made to conform to the 

requirements of the technical codes for new construction. 

 

(b) Change of occupancy. If the occupancy classification of any existing building or structure 

is changed, the building, electrical, gas, mechanical and plumbing systems shall be made to 

conform to the intent of the technical codes, as required by the director. 

Sec. 18-81. - Special historical buildings. 

The provisions of the standard building codes relating to the construction, alteration, repair, 

enlargement, restoration, relocation or moving of buildings or structures shall not be mandatory 

for existing buildings or structures identified and classified by the state or county as historic 

buildings when such buildings or structures are judged by the director to be safe and in the public 

interest of health, safety and welfare regarding any proposed construction, alteration, repair, 

enlargement, restoration, relocation, or moving of buildings within fire districts. 

Sec. 18-82. - Property maintenance. 

All buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical and plumbing systems, both existing and 

new, and all parts thereof, shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary condition. All devices or 

safeguards, which are required by the standard building codes when constructed, altered, or 

123



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 13 of 18 
 

repaired, shall be maintained in good working order. The owner, or his designated agent, shall be 

responsible for the maintenance of buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical and 

plumbing systems. 

Sec. 18-83. - Illegal lots. 

Building permits may only be issued on lots of record. No building permit shall be issued on any 

illegal non-conforming lot, as such is defined in the Putnam County Zoning Ordinance. There are 

lots within Putnam County, that, while their existence may be recorded in the office of the Clerk 

of Putnam Superior Court, were not lawfully created in accordance with the laws of Putnam 

County as described herein, or at the time of their creation, and are not lots of record. Putnam 

County will not issue a building permit for such lots. 

Sec. 18-84. - Partially-built structures. 

The county finds that partially built and subsequently abandoned homes and other buildings and 

structures are occurring more frequently and are an aesthetic harm to the community; they also 

reduce property values of adjacent and nearby property; they create a public safety hazard in that 

they can be dangerous; and they invite illicit activity. The county finds such structures to be a 

nuisance. Therefore, it shall be unlawful for a property owner to leave a residential, commercial 

or industrial structure in a partially-built status for more than six months with no substantial 

progress occurring on the construction. Partially-built means foundations that are poured or 

erected; basements that have been dug and partially completed; and structures that have been 

framed or dried-in (siding, roofing, windows and doors in place) but not completed. It shall be 

permissible to finish the exterior of a commercial shopping center or other commercial or 

industrial building without building-out the inside. It shall also be a violation for a partially 

completed building or structure to remain unfinished without a certificate of occupancy more 

than 30 days after the expiration of its building permit (building permits expire one year from 

issuance unless extended). The director shall be authorized to issue citations to the property 

owner or builder, and shall be authorized to seek abatement of the nuisance in magistrate court or 

superior court.’’ 

Sec. 18-85. - Minor repairs exempted. 

Ordinary minor repairs may be made without a permit, provided that such repairs shall not 

violate any of the provisions of the standard building codes. 

Sec. 18-86. - Swimming pools. 

Any swimming pool shall be enclosed with a fence that is in compliance with the standard 

building code (International Residential Code). Public swimming pools must also comply with 

applicable regulations of the Putnam County Board of Health 

Sec. 18-87. - Accessory buildings. 

Accessory buildings in residential and agricultural zoning districts shall not require site plans. 

However, such applications must be provided with certification that such buildings will meet all 

applicable setbacks and comply with any relevant special agricultural zoning setbacks contained 

in the Putnam County Zoning Ordinance. Placement of and requirements for accessory buildings 

is governed by the zoning ordinance. 

124



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 14 of 18 
 

 

Sec. 18-88. - Pending violations and stop-work orders. 

No building permit shall be issued to any applicant currently in violation of this chapter, or any 

other ordinance of Putnam County. No building permit shall be issued to any applicant currently 

subject to a stop-work order under this chapter, or any other ordinance of Putnam County. 

 

Sec. 18-89. - Compliance with licensing requirements. 

 

It shall be the duty of every contractor who contracts for the installation or repairs of building, 

structure, electrical, gas, mechanical, sprinkler or plumbing systems, for which a permit is 

required, to comply with all state or local rules and regulations concerning licensing which the 

county has adopted. In cases where the state requires a contractor to have obtained a state license 

before they are permitted to perform work, the contractor shall supply the local government with 

their license number before receiving a permit for work to be performed. 

 

Sec. 18-90. - Inspections.  

Field inspections will be made to determine that the building, construction or structural alteration 

or use is being pursued in accordance with the site plan for which a development or building 

permit has been issued and in compliance with this chapter. These inspections and reports of 

findings shall be made as soon as practicable after inspection is requested by the developer. 

When a violation is found to exist, a notice of violation will be posted on the site. See section 18-

84 for enforcement and penalties of this chapter.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-91. - Certificate of occupancy.  

Upon completion of construction but prior to occupancy or use for the purpose constructed, and 

prior to utility hookup, the property owner or his agent shall notify the planning and development 

department and request final inspection of the premises. The inspection will be conducted as 

quickly as is reasonably practicable after such request. A certificate of occupancy will be issued 

only if such construction comports with all applicable local, state or national rules, regulations, 

statutes, laws, ordinances, and the terms of this chapter. No electricity, gas or water may be 

supplied to the premises until such certificate of occupancy is issued.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-92. - Unsafe buildings.  

An unsafe building is defined as any building or other structure which is in such a dilapidated 

condition that it is unfit for human habitation, or kept in such an unsanitary condition that it is a 

menace to the health of people residing in the vicinity thereof, or presents a fire hazard and/or 

other hazards incident to the construction, alteration, repair, demolition, use and occupancy of 

such building, structures or premises. The International Property Maintenance Code, with the 

125



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 15 of 18 
 

exceptions of Section 111, Means of appeal, will regulate this Code; all appeals will be made 

according to chapter 66, subsection 66-156(d) and subsection 66-157(c).  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1); Amend. of 1-12-2010) 

Sec. 18-93. - Manufactured housing site requirements.  

(a)  No structure not now located within the county shall be used as a residence and 

individually sited unless it has been constructed in conformity with the requirements of the 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development under 42 USC 5401, currently meet all 

fire and safety requirements of such standards, and has more than 450 square feet of living 

area. No pre-HUD (mobile) home may be transported on or across county roads.  

(b)  Any manufactured home shall be completely enclosed (skirted) with materials of brick, 

block, concrete or siding of like or similar character to the unit, or other nonrigid materials 

that must be affixed to a solid backing not less than one-half inch thick.  

(c)  All manufactured homes individually sited must have at each door a landing that is a 

minimum of 36 inches by 36 inches; be attached to a permanent foundation; and have all 

towing devices, wheels, axles and removable hitches removed.  

(d)  All manufactured homes to be individually sited shall comply with the following:  

(1)  In existing subdivisions that have specific covenants providing for individual siting 

of such homes, the setbacks provided in the covenants shall control, but shall not be less 

than the standard residential setback required by chapter 66, zoning.  

(2)  In existing subdivisions that allow the siting of such homes, the standard residential 

setbacks provided in chapter 66, zoning.  

(e)  All manufactured homes individually sited must be placed upon permanent foundations 

constructed in accordance with applicable building codes and state law and shall be installed 

in accordance with manufacturers' instructions and O.C.G.A. § 8-2-131 and state fire marshal 

rules and regulations.  

(f)  The following items must be completed before final power inspection for manufactured 

homes and site-built homes:  

(1)  Completion of skirting/underpinning as sited in subsection (b) above;  

(2)  Construction of porches/decks at each exit as sited in subsection (c) above;  

(3)  Installation of driveway pipe and gravel at driveway entrances onto 

county/state/federal roads;  

(4)  Construction of well house, if applicable;  

(5)  Permanent posting of street number; and  

(6)  Connection to water and sewer facilities, if applicable.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-94. - Minimum standards for pre-owned manufactured homes.  

126



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 16 of 18 
 

These standards are applicable only to those pre-owned manufactured homes built under the 

Federal Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards (HUD Code) and defined as a 

manufactured home under O.C.G.A. 8-2-131(3). Construction and safety standards for a pre-

owned HUD Code manufactured home should not exceed the HUD Code standard in effect at 

the time the home was produced.  

(a)  Definitions.  

(1)  Pre-owned manufactured home. Any manufactured home as defined in O.C.G.A. 

8-2-131(3) that has been previously utilized as a residential dwelling.  

(2)  Retailer. A retailer shall be synonymous with dealer as defined in O.C.G.A. 8-2-

131(2).  

(3)  Assignee. Any bank, financial institution or any person purchasing a retail 

installment contract, that has as security a manufactured home.  

(b)  Facilities required.  

(1)  Sanitary facilities. Every pre-owned manufactured home shall contain not less than 

a kitchen sink, lavatory, tub or shower, and a water closet all in working condition when 

properly connected to an approved water and septic/sewer system. Every plumbing 

fixture and water and waste pipe shall be in a sanitary working condition free from leaks, 

and obstructions.  

(2)  Hot and cold water supply. Every kitchen sink, lavatory and tub or shower in a pre-

owned manufactured home must be connected to a supply of both cold and hot water.  

(3)  Water-heating facilities. Every pre-owned manufactured home shall have water-

heating facilities in a safe, working condition.  

(4)  Heating facilities. Every pre-owned manufactured home shall have heating 

facilities in safe, working condition. Where a central heating system is not provided, each 

manufactured home shall be provided with facilities whereby heating appliances may be 

connected. Unvented fuel-burning heaters shall be prohibited except for gas heaters listed 

for unvented use and the total input rating of the unvented heaters is less than 30 BTU 

per cubic foot of room content. Unvented fuel-burning heaters shall be prohibited in 

bedrooms. In lieu of inspecting the heating facilities of a pre-owned manufactured home, 

the retailer, assignee, or county may request a heating inspection by a qualified third 

party. Approval by such a person will be accepted as compliance with those portions of 

the safety standards established herein which pertain to heating systems. The county will 

not be responsible for any cost incurred by or due to a third party.  

(5)  Smoke detector. Every pre-owned manufactured home shall be provided with a 

State of Georgia-approved smoke detector, installed in accordance with the 

manufacturer's recommendations and listing.  

(6)  Windows. Every habitable room excluding bathrooms, kitchens, and hallways shall 

have at least one window that can be opened, facing directly to the outdoors.  

(7)  Ventilation. Every habitable room shall have at least one window or skylight which 

can be opened, or such other device that will ventilate the room.  

(8)  Electrical.  

127



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 17 of 18 
 

a.  Distribution panels. Distribution panels shall be in compliance with the 

approved listing, complete with required breakers or fuses, with all unused openings 

covered with blank covers approved and listed for that purpose. Connections shall be 

checked for tightness. Panels shall be accessible.  

b.  Electrical system. The electrical system (switches, receptacles, fixtures, etc.) 

shall be properly installed, wired and shall be in working condition. The pre-owned 

manufactured home shall be subjected to an electrical continuity test(s) to assure that 

all metallic parts are properly bonded.  

c.  Third-party inspection. The retailer, assignee, or county may, in lieu of 

inspecting the electrical system of a pre-owned manufactured home, request an 

electrical inspection by a qualified third party. Approval by such a person will be 

accepted as compliance with those portions of the safety standards established herein 

which pertain to electrical systems. The county will not be responsible for any cost 

incurred by or due to a qualified third party.  

(9)  Exterior walls. The exterior of the home shall be free of loose or rotting boards or 

timbers and any other conditions that might admit rain or moisture to the interior portions 

of the walls to the occupied spaces of the pre-owned manufactured home.  

(10)  Exterior siding. The exterior siding of the pre-owned manufactured home shall be 

free of rot and rust and must be uniform in appearance.  

(11)  Roofs. Roofs shall be structurally sound and have no obvious defects, which might 

admit rain or cause moisture to collect on the interior portion of the home.  

(12)  Interior floors, walls and ceiling. Every floor, interior wall and ceiling shall be 

kept in sound condition to prevent the admittance of rain or moisture.  

(c)  Homes purchased for repair. No home may be occupied until standards herein are met.  

HUD Code. Every pre-owned manufactured home located in the jurisdiction shall be in 

compliance with the Federal Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act, 42 

U.S.C. § 5401-5445 (the HUD Code) and shall not have been altered in such a way that the home 

no longer meets the HUD Code. 

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1)) 

Sec. 18-95. - Enforcement; penalties for violation of article.  

(a)  In case any building or structure is or is proposed to be erected, constructed, 

reconstructed, altered, covered or maintained, or any building, structure or land is or is 

proposed to be used in violation of any provision of this chapter, the  of the planning and 

development department, or any other appropriate authority of the county, may, in addition to 

other remedies, and after due notice to the owner of the violation, issue a citation for violation 

of this chapter requiring the presence of the violator in the magistrate's court; or institute 

injunction or other appropriate action or proceeding to prevent this unlawful erection, 

construction, reconstruction, alteration, conversion, maintenance or use to correct or abate this 

violation or to prevent the occupancy of this building, structure or land. Where a violation of 

the regulations of this chapter exists with respect to a structure or land, the may, in addition 

128



TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Page 18 of 18 
 

to other remedies, require that public utility service be withheld therefrom until such time as 

the structure or premises are no longer in violation of this chapter.  

(b)  Any firm, person or corporation that shall do anything prohibited by this chapter as they 

exist, or as they may hereafter be amended, or who shall fail to do anything required by this 

chapter as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended, upon conviction of a violation, 

shall be subject to punishment as provided by law. Any violation of this chapter shall be 

regarded as a misdemeanor, punishable by up to one year's imprisonment and/or a fine of 

$500.00. Each day that this violation exists shall be deemed a separate offense.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(1))  

129



File Attachments for Item:

8. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - June 15, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

130



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 3  

June 15, 2021   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, June 15, 2021 at approximately 

6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation - Pastor David Wofford, Eatonton First United Methodist Church 

Pastor David Wofford gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (staff) 

County Manager Van Haute led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

131



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 3  

June 15, 2021   

 

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

Mr. Michael Benton, new Uncle Remus Golf Course Superintendent, introduced himself and 

gave an update on that status of the golf course. 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - June 4, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - June 4, 2021 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign 2021 ACCG-Group Health Benefits Program Health 

Promotion & Wellbeing Grant Application (staff-HR) 

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Section 5311 Transit Operating and Capital 

Assistance Agreement (staff-Transit) 

e. Authorization for Chairman to sign Final Subdivision Plat for Overlook at Pea Ridge 

(staff-P&D) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

7. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr. to remove the trees in the right of way along Scott Road 

(staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute explained that the 170 acre project on Scott Road is getting under 

way.  

Motion to approve the request by Howard McMichael, Jr. to remove the trees in the right 

of way along Scott Road in front of his property. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 
 

8. Appointment of Chairperson of the Putnam County Board of Elections and Registration 

(staff-CC) 

Motion to appoint Charles Patten as Chairperson of the Putnam County Board of Elections 

and Registration. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 
 

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign FY2022 Georgia Indigent Defense Services Agreement 

(staff-Finance) 

Circuit Public Defender John Bradley reviewed the agreement and answered questions. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the FY2022 Georgia Indigent Defense Services 

Agreement. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

132



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 3  

June 15, 2021   

 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution to Call for a Referendum Imposing a Special 

District Mass Transportation Sales and Use Tax (staff-CM) 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution to Call for a Referendum 

Imposing a Special District Mass Transportation Sales and Use Tax. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
11. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported that plans for the right turn deceleration lane on Dennis 

station for Interfor had been drawn and will be going out to bid soon. 

 

12. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

13. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: advised that on June 11, 2021 he finished the last of the core classes 

for the ACCG Certified Commissioner program. 

 

Commissioner Brown: absent 

 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

 

Commissioner Wooten: none 

 

Chairman Webster: commented that the May/June 2021 issue of James Magazine has an article 

on the most influential attorneys in the state of Georgia and our own County Attorney, Barry 

Fleming, is listed there. 

 

Closing 
14. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 6:49 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

133



File Attachments for Item:

9. Approval of Right-of-Way Permit for Tim Camp (staff-CM)

134



135



136



File Attachments for Item:

10. Request from Tax Commissioner to write off bad debts (TC)

137



Taxpayer Name Map / Parcel Number Year of Tax Bill Type of Tax Original Tax Bill Unpaid Balance Reason for Write-Off

Bill Number

Allison, Bruce J P1 70446 2018 Boat 78.93 126.99                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Allison, Bruce J P1 70446 2019 Boat 73.97 113.82                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Brown, Dennis W P1 64544 2017 Boat 188.39 561.74                 Sold Boat

Brown Dog Restaurants LLC P1 66084 2019 Equipment 426.71 580.47                 Closed - no inventory to levy

Brown's Rentals LLC P1 68518 2017 Inventory/Equip 117.40 307.09                 Closed - no inventory to levy

Champion, Stacey P1 67804 2019 Boat 267.56 371.06                 Bankruptcy Court Sold Boat

Cheatham, Anthony P P1 70895 2017 Boat 87.31 408.63                 Sold Boat

Daniel's Auto Repair P1 70364 2018 Inventory/Equip 83.33 133.15                 Closed - no inventory to levy

Day, Marcy & Minchey, Shannon P1 71864 2019 Inventory/Equip 114.97 168.18                 Closed - no inventory to levy

Hairston, Thomas P P1 67170 2016 Boat 82.11 406.99                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Hairston, Thomas P P1 67170 2017 Boat 73.50 124.86                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Hairston, Thomas P P1 67170 2018 Boat 78.09 125.81                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Hairston, Thomas P P1 67170 2019 Boat 75.36 115.65                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Hawkins, Heath D P1 70747 2019 Boat 191.60 271.11                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Howard, Lisa P1 71054 2019 Boat 80.35 122.22                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Johnson, Huey P1 70560 2018 Boat 110.61 173.85                 Boat cannot be located / 2018 is Last Bill

Maddock, Corey E P1 70468 2017 Boat 200.66 364.84                 Boat cannot be located / 2017 is Last Bill

Mallet, Steven P1 67224 2018 Boat 132.29 204.19                 Sold Boat

McQuain, Timothy P1 69089 2016 Boat 169.20 544.84                 Taxpayer moved to TN

Melear, Andrew J P1 70263 2019 Boat 106.30 158.87                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Phillips, Kenneth E P1 70146 2018 Boat 113.06 177.28                 Sold Boat

Putkowski, Paul J P1 6190 2017 Boat 95.45 422.22                 Gave Boat Away

Ray, Jeremy S P1 67692 2017 Boat 147.90 287.05                 Sold Boat

Rogers, Joseph M P1 68959 2018 Boat 81.53 130.63                 Boat cannot be located / 2018 is Last Bill

Sergot, Stanley U P1 68268 2017 Boat 111.74 448.73                 Boat cannot be located / 2017 is Last Bill

Simply Beautiful P1 69550 2018 Inventory/Equip 193.74 290.22                 Closed - no inventory to levy

Smith, Everett R P1 66626 2017 Boat 501.51 1,023.40              Boat cannot be located / 2017 is Last Bill

Smith, James P1 67939 2019 Boat 175.00 249.27                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

The Frisk Pub P1 71830 2019 Inventory/Equip 282.26 650.27                 Closed - no inventory to levy

The Frisk Pub P1 71830 2020 Inventory/Equip 273.29 316.25                 Closed - no inventory to levy

Watson, Timothy J P1 72713 2019 Boat 98.91 144.84                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

Wires, Bradly A & Gina M P1 72730 2019 Boat 406.16 546.04                 Boat in Florida

Woodward, Donald Sr. H P1 70535 2019 Boat 117.48 173.57                 boat cannot be located  / No 2020 Bill

TOTALS 5,336.67 10,244.13            

OFFICE OF THE PUTNAM COUNTY TAX COMMISSIONER

REQUEST TO WRITE-OFF BAD DEBTS AS OF June 30, 2021

138



File Attachments for Item:

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution Electing not to require Mobile Home Decals (TC & TA)

139



A RESOLUTION OF PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA  

ELECTING NOT TO REQUIRE MOBILE HOME DECALS  

 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 193 was passed in the 2021-2022 Regular Session of the 

Georgia General Assembly, and was signed by the Governor and became effective on the 6th day 

of May, 2021;  

 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 193 amended O.C.G.A. §48-5-492(a) to allow the governing 

authority of the county in which the mobile home is located to opt out of the requirement to issue 

mobile home decals as evidence of a mobile home location permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. §48-5-263(11), the appraiser of the County shall, 
in counties that elect to require decals pursuant to Code Section 48-5-492 inspect mobile homes 

located in the county to determine if the proper decal is attached to and displayed on the mobile 

home by the owner as provided by law; notify the residents of those mobile homes to which a 

decal is not attached of the provisions of  Code Sections 48-5-492 and 48-5-493; and furnish to 

the tax collector or tax commissioner a periodic list of those mobile homes to which a decal is 

not attached; and 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of Putnam County elects not to require mobile 

home location decals pursuant to O.C.G.A. §48-5-492(a), 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to and as authorized by O.C.G.A. 

§48-5-492(a), the Board of Commissioners of Putnam County, resolves and elects not to require 

mobile home location decals in Putnam County, Georgia, and hereby relieves the Tax 

Commissioner of Putnam County and the appraiser of Putnam County of any requirements under 

the law, whether pursuant to O.C.G.A. 48-5-263 and O.C.G.A. §48-5-492 et seq. or otherwise 

related to the issuance, inspection, and enforcement of mobile home location decals, and any and 

all other responsibilities that may have been otherwise required due to the issuance of mobile home 

location decals.  

 

REPEALER 
All previous Resolutions of the Board of Commissioners of Putnam County in conflict 

herewith are hereby superseded and repealed. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption. It shall remain in full force and effect 

until superseded or repealed.  

 

BE IT IS SO RESOLVED, this 2nd day of July 2021.  

 

 

    By: __________________________ 

     Billy Webster, Chairman 

     Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

    

    Attest: ___________________________ 

     Lynn Butterworth, County Clerk 

140


	Top
	Item #5.	2021-07-02 BOC Sprayberry Appeal
	Sprayberry P&Z Info
	Sprayberry-149 Mags Path Appeal
	Sprayberry-Supporting Documents Part 1
	Sprayberry-Supporting Documents Part 2
	Sprayberry New Plats
	Sprayberry New Plats-0001
	Sprayberry New Plats-0002
	Sprayberry New Plats-0003
	Sprayberry-Letter in support of variance Robert Dan  Anita E. Headstream
	Sprayberry Letter in support of variance Bedgoods
	Sprayberry Transcript - June 3, 2021 Planning and Dev Hearing
	Sprayberry Transcript Exhibit A
	Sprayberry Transcript Exhibit B
	Sprayberry Transcript Exhibit C
	Sprayberry Transcript Exhibit D
	Sprayberry Transcript Exhibit E
	Sprayberry Transcript Exhibit F

	Item #6.	2021-07-02 BOC Chapter 6 & 18
	Chapter 6 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES-Brewery-Winery
	210625 Chapter 18 rewrite

	Item #8.	2021-07-02 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 06-15-21 BOC Minutes

	Item #9.	2021-07-02 BOC ROW Permit-Camp
	Camp ROW application
	Road Bore route-converted

	Item #10.	2021-07-02 BOC Bad Debts
	Request to Write Off Bad Debts as of 06.30.2021 updated 06.30.21

	Item #11.	2021-07-02 BOC MH Decals
	Resolution electing not to require mobile home decals_v1

	Bottom
























































































                                                                      1



           1       BEFORE THE PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

           2

           3

           4                  TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

           5

           6                             Putnam County Administration
                                         117 Putnam Drive
           7                             Room 203
                                         Eatonton, Georgia 31024
           8

           9                             Thursday, June 3, 2021

          10

          11

          12   PRESENT WERE:

          13             TIM PIERSON, Chairman
                         MAURICE HILL, JR., Member
          14             MARTHA FARLEY, Member
                         John Mitchell, Member
          15

          16

          17   Also Present:

          18             Adam Nelson, General Counsel
                         Lisa Jackson, Director of Planning &
          19             Development
                         Ben Schmitt, Zoning Coordinator
          20             Courtney Andrews, Assistant Director

          21

          22                     ATHENS REPORTING, LLC
                                 490 N. Thomas Street
          23                    Athens, Georgia  30601
                                    (770) 225-7663
          24                    www.athensreporting.com

          25            Copyright 2021 - Athens Reporting, LLC
�                                                                      2



           1                           EXHIBITS

           2    DESCRIPTION                                     PAGE

           3   Applicant's:

           4    1   Exhibit notebook containing Exhibits A-F      5

           5

           6

           7

           8

           9

          10

          11

          12

          13

          14

          15

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
�                                                                      3



           1                           * * * * *

           2             (Agenda item was heard at 6:32 p.m.)

           3             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  This evening we're going to

           4        start with Item No. 5, the request by Josh and

           5        Lauren Sprayberry for a rear yard setback variance

           6        at 149 Mags Path, presently zoned R-1 at 104A,

           7        Parcel 102, District 3.

           8             I think we have three speakers signed up.

           9        Whoever is going to go first, please turn the mic on

          10        for us.

          11             MR. DILLARD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members

          12        of the Planning Commission.  I'm Doug Dillard with

          13        Dillard and Sellers.  And Jeff Haymore and I

          14        represent the applicant.

          15             MEMBER HILL:  Turn your mic on.

          16             MR. DILLARD:  You're not hearing me?

          17             MEMBER HILL:  The button.

          18             MEMBER FARLEY:  Hit the button.

          19             MS. JACKSON:  Push the button.

          20             MR. DILLARD:  Oh, there we go.

          21             I'm sorry.  I'll start over.

          22             I'm Doug Dillard with Dillard Sellers.  Jeff

          23        Haymore and I represent the applicant.

          24             And we're here today to seek a variance from

          25        the 65-foot rear yard setback to build a swimming
�                                                                      4



           1        pool at their residence no closer than 35 feet from

           2        the lake.  In other words, we're asking for a

           3        30-foot variance.

           4             We expect the evidence to show that this is not

           5        uncommon in Putnam County and along -- and along

           6        Lake Oconee.  In fact, this property is long,

           7        narrow, irregularly shaped.  Their property sits at

           8        the end of a cul-de-sac known as Mags Path.  It's a

           9        corner lot with additional footage on Capps Lane.

          10             This is the subject property.  A lot of

          11        characteristics severely limit the ability to locate

          12        a pool.  It's long.  It's narrow.  And I'm going to

          13        go through why -- why this variance is justified.

          14             As you well know, there are two basic reasons

          15        -- legal bases for the granting of a variance in

          16        Putnam County.  And it's an either/or situation.

          17        The first one is whereby the exceptional narrowness,

          18        shallowness, or shape of a specific piece of

          19        property.  The second is where there are

          20        extraordinary or exceptional conditions which create

          21        an undue hardship on the property owner.

          22             Now, the staff report focused on the undue

          23        hardship.  We think we satisfy both of them.  But

          24        even if you felt we didn't satisfy two, we feel like

          25        because of the shape, topography, condition of this
�                                                                      5



           1        lot -- and I've got an environmentalist here that

           2        will talk a little bit about that -- we would be

           3        entitled to a variance under that.  We're entitled

           4        to the variance under this first scenario which does

           5        not require a hardship report.

           6             (Applicant's Exhibit No. 1 was given to the

           7   members.)

           8             MR. DILLARD:  If you turn to Exhibit A of our

           9        filing, you will see that the subject property was

          10        platted February of '05 prior to the current

          11        ordinance.  Because we've got an exceptionally

          12        narrow lot, something the staff report recognizes,

          13        but because our lot was platted before the zoning

          14        ordinance was adopted, we're entitled to a variance

          15        for that reason.

          16             Under scenario two, staff focused on --

          17             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Your mic turned off.

          18             Sorry to interrupt.  Your mic turned off.  You

          19        can hit that again, please.

          20             MR. DILLARD:  You want to turn it off?

          21             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  No.  It is off.

          22             MR. DILLARD:  Oh, I turned it off with my

          23        notebook, I guess.

          24             Okay.  The decision to locate the house where

          25        we did was not due to poor judgment, but due to poor
�                                                                      6



           1        soils.  The poor soils mean that we could not locate

           2        the home closer to Mags Path.  These poor soils

           3        confirm our -- our finding of our constitutional,

           4        extraordinary and exceptional conditions.

           5        Additional extraordinary and exceptional conditions

           6        are the narrowness of the lot, multiple street

           7        frontages that severely constrain the use of the

           8        property.  These are not self-imposed hardships.

           9             To locate the swimming pool elsewhere on the

          10        property is not physically possible.  Physically

          11        there's no room for the pool between Mags Path and

          12        the residential structure because the septic tank is

          13        located in that area.  And the residential structure

          14        would otherwise block the sunlight on the pool in

          15        that area.

          16             Legally the zoning ordinance permits accessory

          17        structures in the side or rear yard of any

          18        residential district.  Placing the pool between the

          19        house and the lake is commonplace, as at least three

          20        existing lakefront homes on Mags Path enjoy swimming

          21        pools which are located between the homes and Lake

          22        Oconee.  And that's in our neighborhood.  And you

          23        can see that on Exhibit B that we have given you.

          24             Under Exhibit C, we've now -- with regard to

          25        the pool, it's 35 feet.  It's no closer to Lake
�                                                                      7



           1        Oconee than the adjacent residence at 145 Mags Path.

           2        And you can see that on Exhibit C, which is

           3        attached.

           4             Their residence is 68 feet from the lake.

           5        We're 75.  Their hot tub and fireplace is at 32.6

           6        feet and 30.6 feet respectively.

           7             We have provided you almost 60 cases where this

           8        Commission has approved lake setback variances since

           9        2015, including swimming pools.  A summary of these

          10        variances is attached as Exhibit E in your notebook.

          11        And you can see that we've got a little bit of --

          12        there's been a lot of variances granted for pools,

          13        for fireplaces, and others.

          14             For example, this Commission granted a 60-foot

          15        lake setback variance for Cuscowilla clubhouse pool

          16        and we're requesting only 30.  To assuage any

          17        concern about the effect of the pool at 35 feet from

          18        Lake Oconee, before you is Exhibit E, an

          19        environmental assessment of Cody Hale.  And I'm

          20        going to call on Cody here in just a minute to go

          21        through his evaluation.

          22             Finally, we have a written support from

          23        next-door neighbors at 155 Capps Lane, Robert and

          24        Anita Headstream.  Their letter is shown as

          25        Exhibit F.
�                                                                      8



           1             We also have the other property that is

           2        adjacent on the other side from them that has also

           3        given us a letter.  And you have that in your

           4        material.

           5             We ask that you grant the respective variance

           6        finding that it satisfies scenario one and two for

           7        granting a variance.  I reserve the balance of my

           8        time for rebuttal.

           9             And I'd like to call Mr. Cody Hale at this time

          10        for his remarks.  And I understand he has three

          11        minutes and I can reserve my portion of whatever is

          12        left of my ten for rebuttal, if any.

          13             Is that correct?

          14             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  That's correct.  Four

          15        minutes.

          16             MR. DILLARD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          17             And Cody.

          18             MR. HALE:  Good evening.

          19             MS. JACKSON:  Hold on for one second.

          20             MR. HALE:  Sure.  No problem.

          21             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Go ahead.

          22             MR. HALE:  Good evening.  My name is Cody Hale.

          23        I'm a principal at Nutter and Associates.  We're an

          24        environmental consulting firm.  We've been in

          25        business for 37 years.
�                                                                      9



           1             My area of expertise, I'm a hydrologist and

           2        water quality specialist.  I've got about 18 years

           3        experience in this area and two advanced degrees,

           4        including a Ph.D. in water resources science.

           5             I was asked to evaluate the proposed project

           6        with respect to the health and quality at Lake

           7        Oconee.  My overall finding with respect to this

           8        project is the proposal to locate the pool at

           9        149 Mags Path about 35 feet from Lake Oconee poses

          10        no threat to the lake or the ecosystem that it

          11        supports.

          12             To arrive at that conclusion, I considered not

          13        only the water quality, the aquatic life, the flora

          14        and the fauna of the lake, and the hydrology of the

          15        lake.  I looked at this with respect to not only the

          16        long-term insulation of the pool and its operations,

          17        but also while under construction.

          18             So several points I would like to make.  The

          19        proposed site is located wholly in FEMA's Zone X, an

          20        area of minimal flood hazard.  That means it's above

          21        the 500-year elevation.  There will be no

          22        floodwaters interacting with this pool and the lake.

          23        So no chance for -- through the pool to be

          24        interacting with lake water as a result of floods.

          25             With respect to water quality, we really just
�                                                                     10



           1        need to look at the volumes of water involved here.

           2        The pool is a 20,000-gallon approximately pool.  The

           3        lake, 130 billion gallons.  So pollution is -- is a

           4        major factor with respect to water quality.

           5             We have 35 feet proposed between the pool and

           6        the lake surface.  What would normally be happening

           7        with the operation of this pool at most will be

           8        incidental splash out; whereby, that water will

           9        infiltrate into the soil and never interact with the

          10        lake.

          11             At worst, if the whole pool were to release and

          12        enter into Lake Oconee, we've got 20,000 gallons

          13        mixing with a massive volume of water.  Even at the

          14        local scale right in front of their home and the

          15        lake there's not going to be any water quality

          16        effects.

          17             When we look at the typical water quality

          18        parameters, pH, temperature, dissolved oxygen,

          19        suspended sediment concentration, turbidity,

          20        nutrients and bacteria, a pool of this size will

          21        have no effect even in the immediate area within

          22        Lake Oconee next to this lot.

          23             From a hydrology perspective, I think it's

          24        obvious, but I'll state it for the record.  When we

          25        have a pool of this size, a 16-by-32 pool, this --
�                                                                     11



           1        this pool has no -- this structure has no ability to

           2        affect the overall hydrology of Lake Oconee or the

           3        Georgia Power Company's operation of Wallace Dam.

           4        The watershed of Lake Oconee is just simply too

           5        large for such a small footprint of this pond -- of

           6        this lake to have an effect -- of this pool to have

           7        an effect on the lake.

           8             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Thank you very much.

           9             Mr. Sprayberry.

          10             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  If you would, open up your

          11        packet.  You have a series of maps.  I just want to

          12        walk through those.  They're in the very back of

          13        your folder.

          14             When you look at the first one, it's right here

          15        on this page here.  It's the one on the left.  This

          16        is actually our residence and it shows where we have

          17        35 feet from the seawall to the edge of the pool.

          18             It also shows the neighbor's improvements for a

          19        hot tub and a chimney well within the 30-foot from

          20        the lake setback.

          21             As we go to page two, Wildwood, this is in the

          22        area of 140 Wildwood.  Their pool deck is 15 feet

          23        from their property line.  So nowhere near the

          24        setback variances that we're talking about here for

          25        our property.
�                                                                     12



           1             This pool was built in 2019.  And the comment

           2        has been made:  Well, that was in a PUD.  PUD zoning

           3        has changed to RM-3.  At the time this pool was

           4        constructed, it was under RM-3 zoning, which means

           5        the rules for setbacks that were applicable to RM-3

           6        should rule.  And the setback in '19 was 100-foot.

           7        We're dealing with a pool that's 15-foot from the

           8        lake.

           9             As we flip to the next page, here is another

          10        pool in Cuscowilla.  This is a pool that's 33 feet

          11        from the lake.  This pool was constructed at a

          12        previous time, but it just goes to show another

          13        example of a pool in Putnam County less than 35 foot

          14        from the lake.

          15             As we flip on to the next example, I know one

          16        of the comments made during the site visit that we

          17        built our house too big and that we used too much of

          18        our lot.  Here is another example in Waters Edge,

          19        another RM-3 zoned community, a house that was built

          20        in '19, a pool that was built in '19, that is 35

          21        feet from the lake, similar design and construction

          22        as to what we seek before you tonight.

          23             This house's footprint is 7,100 square foot,

          24        way substantially more than my 5,300 square foot

          25        footprint for my residence.  Similar lot
�                                                                     13



           1        characteristics; very narrow, very open at the end.

           2        They had no choice but to put the house where they

           3        did so it will fit, just like we did.

           4             That's only half my lot.  I share a driveway

           5        with my neighbor because our lot at the other end is

           6        too narrow to have two driveways.  So we put the

           7        house at the widest point we could within a

           8        reasonable setback, 75-foot from the lake, so that

           9        we didn't block our neighbor's view to the right

          10        from the water.

          11             As we look at the last page and the last

          12        example, this is 137 Clearwater Circle.  It is not

          13        an RM-3 property.  It is zoned the exact same we

          14        are.  And their pool is 29 foot from the lake.

          15             I appreciate your time this evening.

          16             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Thank you much.

          17             Do we have any questions?

          18             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Yes, I do.

          19             It was mentioned that one of the three

          20        properties in the community that have pools -- I

          21        believe it's Lot 8, was constructed in 2019; is that

          22        correct?

          23             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  In the map package in front of

          24        you, sir?

          25             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Yes.
�                                                                     14



           1             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Wildwood, which would be --

           2        let's see.  If you flip -- are you talking about in

           3        our subdivision or in another subdivision?

           4             MEMBER MITCHELL:  I --

           5             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  I just want to make sure I've

           6        got you.  So you're looking at Chapel Springs?

           7             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Chapel Springs.  I believe

           8        this was --

           9             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  That was '19 or '20, yes, sir.

          10        That's the Capps' lot.  Meredith Capps.

          11             And that's their pool in that area, yes, sir.

          12        That may even be 2020.  That's a recent one.

          13             MEMBER MITCHELL:  And what is the distance from

          14        the lake?

          15             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Let me see.  Give me a second.

          16        I'll pull it on Google.

          17             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Okay.

          18             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Her entire property is

          19        100-foot setback from the pool, but look at my lot

          20        here and this narrowness.  And this is all my

          21        drainage septic field because that's where the

          22        suitables were soiled for our drainage septic field.

          23             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Now, did you say that this

          24        lot constructed -- and the pool constructed in 2019?

          25             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  '19 or '20, yes, sir.  But my
�                                                                     15



           1        examples here were not this pool here --

           2             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Okay.

           3             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  -- in the maps that I

           4        presented with the pools that had been built since

           5        2019 in Putnam County with that distance from the

           6        water.

           7             MEMBER MITCHELL:  And this one, constructed in

           8        2019 or 2020?

           9             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Yes, sir.

          10             MEMBER MITCHELL:  How far back from the lake is

          11        it?

          12             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  It's 100-foot.  But their lot

          13        is substantially wider and their house is built way

          14        up here close to the road.  We didn't have that

          15        option.

          16             MEMBER MITCHELL:  As far as the second lot --

          17             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  My driveway when we bought it,

          18        I bought it with a driveway there, so...

          19             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Lot 11, the second one, what

          20        year was that approved?

          21             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  You're talking about the

          22        Carters' house.  Let me pull that up.

          23             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Okay.

          24             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Yes, sir.

          25             MR. HAYMORE:  For the record, this is Exhibit B
�                                                                     16



           1        to the notebook that you're looking at; is that

           2        right?

           3             MEMBER MITCHELL:  That is correct.

           4             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  So that is Wilson Carter.

           5        Wilson Carter's pool was constructed in 2015.  May

           6        of '15.  75 feet from the shoreline.

           7             MEMBER MITCHELL:  75.

           8             And Lot 14?

           9             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Lot 14.  Appears to be 55 feet

          10        from zoning construction.  2007.

          11             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Now, the other examples that

          12        you cited which -- were not within your community;

          13        is that correct?

          14             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  That's correct.  But they were

          15        within Putnam County.  I didn't know the rules

          16        varied per neighborhood.

          17             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Well, quite often the

          18        ordinances have expired at various communities.

          19             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  But all these pools were built

          20        within the same time period where the same

          21        ordinances have the same rules.  RM-3 in '19 has the

          22        same setback requirements as our zoning.

          23             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Mr. Sprayberry, can we get

          24        you on the mic?

          25             You're speaking loud.  I appreciate that, but
�                                                                     17



           1        just to make sure we've got it.  Thank you.

           2             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Understood.

           3             MR. HAYMORE:  Let me speak to Exhibit B, which

           4        was your question.  What this shows simply is that

           5        since 2015 there have been over 60 cases of which

           6        the Commission has granted a variance reducing the

           7        rear yard from the lake.  The majority of those

           8        zoning districts are R-1, which is what is this

           9        zoning.

          10             But regardless of which district, they all had

          11        the 100-foot setback from the lake.  So regardless

          12        of district.

          13             And then the last column of that spreadsheet

          14        shows you how many feet were reduced.  In some cases

          15        -- and you can see that it might be 20 feet.  In

          16        other cases it might be 53 or 52.  The largest

          17        reduction, in terms of just feet granted, was a

          18        60-foot reduction from 100 to 40 in the Lake

          19        Cuscowilla clubhouse pool.

          20             With regard to the change in zoning, I think

          21        the point Mr. Sprayberry was -- I know he was making

          22        is that PUDs don't have the new 100-foot setback,

          23        but many of those properties have since been rezoned

          24        to a district, specifically RM-3, that does have or

          25        had the 100-foot setback.
�                                                                     18



           1             And so, in other words, even though it might

           2        have been a PUD at one point, when the pool was

           3        built it had been rezoned to a district that had a

           4        100-foot setback and, yet, was built in a location

           5        within that setback apparently without getting a

           6        variance.

           7             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  And to clarify your statement,

           8        Cuscowilla's pool is 14 foot from the water.  And

           9        I'd be happy to show you on Google Earth.

          10             It's not 60.  It's not 40-foot from the pool --

          11        from the water.  It's 14 feet.  And that pool is

          12        four or five times the size of what we're

          13        requesting.

          14             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Mr. Sprayberry, when we

          15        visited your site Ms. Jackson asked if you could

          16        consider an alternative location.  And I'm wondering

          17        if you have looked into that.

          18             I know you have three sets of steps leading

          19        down; is that correct?

          20             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  I guess.  At least two or

          21        three, yes, sir.

          22             MS. JACKSON:  Three.

          23             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Well, I think that's what

          24        your spouse said --

          25             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Yes, sir.
�                                                                     19



           1             MEMBER MITCHELL:  -- was three.

           2             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Yes.

           3             MEMBER MITCHELL:  And you indicated that they

           4        were already under construction?

           5             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Yes, sir.  The steel

           6        manufacturer in Athens has already fabricated those

           7        steps.  The brick masons are wrapping up the porch

           8        so that we can tie those steps in hopefully the next

           9        couple of weeks.

          10             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Okay.  That's all the

          11        questions I have.  Thank you.

          12             MEMBER HILL:  I have a question.  And that is:

          13        Are you familiar with when the ordinance changed for

          14        Putnam County setbacks?

          15             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  In terms of from the 100 to

          16        the 65 recently in the last few months or --

          17             MEMBER HILL:  Yes.

          18             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Yes, sir.  First of the year.

          19             MEMBER HILL:  Okay.  So those are the rules

          20        that you would be applying to this property?

          21             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Yes, sir.  And it'd be helpful

          22        if those rules were updated online.

          23             MEMBER HILL:  Okay.

          24             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Because they're not available

          25        online at this time.  If you pull Putnam County
�                                                                     20



           1        code, it's still the old code.

           2             MEMBER HILL:  Got you.

           3             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Any other questions?

           4             (No response.)

           5             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Okay.  I've got a couple of

           6        questions.  And I don't know who would like to get

           7        this.

           8             But of the list that you provided -- and thank

           9        you for providing it.  I think 60 projects.  Did any

          10        of those have a previous variance?

          11             MR. HAYMORE:  I'm not quite sure I understand

          12        your question.

          13             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Were they granted a variance

          14        at some other point within the process?

          15             MR. HAYMORE:  You mean a second set --

          16             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Is this a second bite at the

          17        apple?

          18             MR. HAYMORE:  Yeah.  Let me explain what that

          19        spreadsheet shows because I did the work.  I've

          20        looked at all the minutes that are available on the

          21        County's website from this Commission from 2015 to

          22        the present.

          23             And for all variance cases involving a rear or

          24        side yard reduction, I simply list the case, the

          25        address, the zoning, the requested relief, the
�                                                                     21



           1        recommendation of staff, the decision of the

           2        Commission, and the total net of relief granted, and

           3        generally the reason for which the variance was

           4        sought.

           5             In terms of your question, did any property

           6        come back a second or third time to seek additional

           7        relief?

           8             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  The other direction.  Was

           9        this variance that you're pointing out a second or

          10        third bite of the apple?

          11             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  We don't know.

          12             MR. HAYMORE:  I don't know.

          13             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  It could go either way.

          14             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Would that come into play;

          15        should that come into play?

          16             And if not, why not?

          17             MR. HAYMORE:  Each -- each case stands on its

          18        own feet.  So before you tonight is a variance

          19        application to which this Commission applies the

          20        criteria.

          21             As Mr. Dillard was saying, the variance may be

          22        granted by this Commission under one or two

          23        scenarios.  And the first scenario is simply if you

          24        have an exceptionally narrow lot.

          25             And I don't think there's any factual dispute
�                                                                     22



           1        this is an exceptionally narrow lot.  And if that

           2        lot was platted prior to the adoption of the zoning

           3        ordinance, then the variance may be granted

           4        irrespective of hardship or how many times a

           5        property has come before this Commission.

           6             What Exhibits A and B show is that this lot was

           7        platted in 2005 and the zoning ordinance was adopted

           8        in '07.  And so because it's a pre-ordinance plat --

           9        platted lot under criteria "A" -- or, excuse me, (1)

          10        of the zoning ordinance, it is entitled to a

          11        variance.

          12             We think we -- we know we meet that.  The

          13        question is scenario two.  And that's the one that

          14        the staff report focused on as to whether or not

          15        there's undue hardship.

          16             So what we're asking is for the Commission to

          17        make a decision tonight whether -- in its decision

          18        whether it finds that we meet criteria one or two or

          19        both.

          20             If you find that we meet one, we're entitled to

          21        the variance.  If you find that we meet two, we're

          22        entitled to the variance.

          23             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Thank you.

          24             And you mentioned the size of the house.  Where

          25        does -- where does the burden of purchasing that lot
�                                                                     23



           1        and building that size house come in, in your

           2        opinion, into this process versus some other smaller

           3        house that leaves you room for a pool in the

           4        original plan?

           5             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  I'm not sure I understand the

           6        question, if you could clarify.

           7             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Okay.  Could you have built

           8        a smaller house or built on a different lot, I

           9        guess, would be the short answer?

          10             MR. DILLARD:  He's trying to say it was

          11        self-imposed.

          12             MR. HAYMORE:  Right.  I think -- that's exactly

          13        right.  The idea that it's self-imposed in the sense

          14        of if we had built a smaller house we would have

          15        more area to build a pool.

          16             Number one, there is no maximum home size in

          17        Putnam County that we are aware of.  What Josh was

          18        saying is that the footprint of his home was not

          19        dictated by a misjudgment or poor judgment, but by

          20        poor soils that dictate where on the lot.  It's an

          21        exceptionally narrow lot.

          22             And so obviously you're not going to put it up

          23        towards Mags Path.  There's just not enough room.

          24        That necessitated shifting it towards the lake.

          25             In terms of the size of the home, it's a two-
�                                                                     24



           1        to three-story.  And so the footprint, while large

           2        to maybe the average person, compared to other homes

           3        immediately adjacent, it's not bigger.

           4             And as Josh was saying, you've got other

           5        structures immediately adjacent that are closer to

           6        the lake than we're proposing.  And both of those

           7        owners -- the ones that would be arguably impacted

           8        the most by relief have written letters, which are

           9        before you, in support of this variance.

          10             And so the question then becomes:  What is the

          11        public health, safety and welfare being served by

          12        denying a variance, and, thereby, precluding the

          13        Sprayberrys from building a pool at the location

          14        that won't be any harm to the adjacent neighbors?

          15             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Okay.

          16             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  And to add to that, when you

          17        talk about size of the house, I've got 5,400 total.

          18        That includes a porch on the back.  The actual

          19        structure of the house is a 50-by-60 square --

          20        square footprint.

          21             So, I mean, when you talk about a 3,000 square

          22        foot house, I don't think that I exceptionally built

          23        out my lot.  We just have a nice big porch to view

          24        the water like anybody else would want on this lake.

          25             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  I would like to go on record
�                                                                     25



           1        saying it's an amazing house.

           2             Any other questions?

           3             MEMBER HILL:  I guess the question I have is --

           4        this house is beautiful.  And, in my mind, the house

           5        has absolutely nothing to do with what we're talking

           6        about right now.

           7             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  I agree more than you want to

           8        know.

           9             MEMBER HILL:  So the -- because the ordinance

          10        changed in December -- see, because, either way, it

          11        doesn't matter to me whether you build a big pool or

          12        a little pool or a bigger house or smaller house.

          13             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Uh-huh.

          14             MEMBER HILL:  My concern is by granting or the

          15        possibility of granting this after the rule had

          16        changed in December 2020 goes against setting the

          17        rule in the first place.

          18             We set -- the ordinance was changed in December

          19        2020 for the 65-foot setback.  So then at what point

          20        do we change that for this property and additional

          21        properties after the 2020 setting of that variance?

          22             MR. DILLARD:  Well, your -- your standards are

          23        pretty well set out in the ordinance; okay?  The

          24        topo, shape, narrowness of the lot, et cetera, are

          25        grounds for approval.  Likewise, except for
�                                                                     26



           1        hardship, et cetera.  We think there is arguments

           2        for both of them.

           3             But the real first argument is this is an

           4        unusually shaped lot.  It's narrow and it's long.

           5        And we've also got hydraulical -- or topographical

           6        issues relative to the implication of the septic

           7        system, which has got to be in the front of the

           8        house which causes us to locate the house closer to

           9        the lake.

          10             So, for those reasons, I don't think you have

          11        to -- you have to worry about uniformity in applying

          12        the new ordinance.  Each case is going to be

          13        different factually.  But this is an unusual

          14        situation because size, shape and topographic --

          15        topography of this lot.

          16             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  And to add to that, most

          17        people's primary and backup septic drain field are

          18        kind of like in front of the house and behind the

          19        house.  If you pull my permit from Putnam County, my

          20        primary and backup septic permit are in front of the

          21        house.

          22             So if it fails at the one spot closer to the

          23        house, we go closer to the road due to the

          24        narrowness of the driveway that was already poured.

          25        So, like, my lot and the lot on the street, we have
�                                                                     27



           1        a shared access road that rides the edge of both

           2        property lines all the way to a split.  And we

           3        didn't start our garage until the far lane after

           4        that split.

           5             So, like, we kind of started the house where

           6        that was originally forked off from the adjacent

           7        property and we tucked it back 10 feet from where

           8        their house sat as not to disturb their lake view

           9        down the main channel.  So that's kind of where --

          10        and both of our septics are up front, primary and

          11        backup.

          12             MR. DILLARD:  Plus, we've got -- we've got

          13        letters of support from both of them on each side of

          14        the -- of this house.  So we've got support of the

          15        adjacent neighbors.  We don't have any opposition

          16        from them.

          17             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Any other questions?

          18             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Yes.  You indicated that

          19        because of the -- rule No. 1, non-conforming lot

          20        allows for variance.  That indeed is true.  However,

          21        there are limits to the amount of how much can be

          22        approved.  And it seems to far exceed --

          23             MR. DILLARD:  Well, here it's not -- we're not

          24        talking about the coverage of the lot.  We're

          25        talking about distance from the lake.  And that's
�                                                                     28



           1        the only issue that you've got.

           2             And to justify that, you've got to look at the

           3        shape and topography of this particular lot.  It's

           4        an unusual lot.  It's narrow.  It's long.

           5             MEMBER MITCHELL:  We understand it's a

           6        non-conforming lot.

           7             MR. DILLARD:  Yes, sir.  But in saying all

           8        that, we're not -- we're not asking for anything

           9        other than to build -- build a pool closer to the

          10        lake than 65 feet.  That's not unusual.

          11             We've got 60 examples over the last several

          12        years of similar variances being granted.  The most

          13        recent and the most common is the one at the

          14        Cuscowilla clubhouse and pool, which is 40 feet off

          15        the lake.

          16             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Any other questions?

          17             (No response.)

          18             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Okay.  You did have extra

          19        time.  Did you have anything to --

          20             MR. DILLARD:  Well, I mean, was there any

          21        opposition?

          22             I didn't hear any opposition.  Is there any

          23        opposition?

          24             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  I don't think so.

          25             MR. DILLARD:  I think we've -- I think we've
�                                                                     29



           1        told you the case, Mr. Chairman.  And I appreciate

           2        your courtesy.

           3             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  I would like to add to

           4        Mr. Hill's comment.  65 feet for a primary structure

           5        completely makes sense to me, you know, in terms of

           6        houses.

           7             But when we look across this lake and we see

           8        fire pits, we see pools, hot tubs, whatever, I think

           9        that's a little different scenario from the 65-foot

          10        rule.  But I agree with you on 65 for primary

          11        structure, as well.

          12             And I know if we pull the Rocker's house up on

          13        the lake, their whole house is within 30-foot of the

          14        lake.  So, I mean, I get the primary structure to be

          15        further away from the water.

          16             MR. DILLARD:  And the footprint of this house

          17        -- while it's a large house, the footprint of this

          18        house is smaller than the next-door neighbor.

          19             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Thank you for your

          20        arguments, your time.

          21             We do have a staff recommendation.  I'm going

          22        to read the entire note into the record.

          23             We've got a request by Josh and Lauren

          24        Sprayberry for a rear yard setback variance at 149

          25        Mags Path, presently zoned R-1, Map 104A, Parcel
�                                                                     30



           1        102, District 3.  The applicants are requesting a

           2        30-foot rear setback variance being 35 feet from the

           3        nearest point to the lake to construct a 16-foot by

           4        32-foot pool.

           5             As it stands, this property has already

           6        received three variances for the construction of the

           7        primary dwelling unit.  The primary dwelling unit is

           8        currently under construction and was granted both a

           9        lake and side setback variance on April 7th, 2016

          10        due to the narrowness of the lot.  The lot width is

          11        91 feet wide in the buildable area.

          12             In addition, the applicants were given some

          13        relief from the lake setback, which is a minimum of

          14        100 feet from the nearest point to the lake.  The

          15        applicants were granted an 8-foot side yard setback

          16        variance being 12 feet from the left and right side

          17        property lines and a 25-foot rear yard setback

          18        variance being 75 feet from the nearest point to the

          19        lake.

          20             The home consists of 9,620 heated square feet,

          21        1,156 unheated square feet, and 1,165 square feet of

          22        porches and decks, with a total square footage of

          23        11,941.  Staff measured the unfinished home with an

          24        attached garage and found that it is currently 157

          25        feet in length and 71 feet wide.
�                                                                     31



           1             In addition, there will be three sets of stairs

           2        sloping from the upper balcony that will extend near

           3        or beyond the 65-foot minimum setback from the lake.

           4        However, once completed the footprint of the house

           5        will exceed the lake side variance that was approved

           6        in 2016, which shall not be closer than 65 feet from

           7        the nearest point to the lake.

           8             As forementioned, in 2016 the applicants were

           9        granted several variances, including lake side

          10        variance to develop this property.  There was a

          11        25 percent deviation approved from the 100 feet

          12        minimum setback from the lake to 75 feet.  And the

          13        Board of Commissioners has since given a 35 percent

          14        decrease in the minimum required lake side setback

          15        to 65 feet.

          16             This lot is approximately 230 plus feet in

          17        length from the buildable area to the lake.  The

          18        applicant has chosen to maximize the buildable area

          19        of this parcel with the construction of their

          20        considerably large new home with no consideration

          21        for an accessory structure that must meet all

          22        applicable setbacks as well.

          23             Staff, therefore, finds no undue hardship

          24        related to the property that is not a direct act of

          25        the applicants.  As a result, this request fails to
�                                                                     32



           1        meet any of the conditions for granting a variance

           2        listed in the Putnam County Code of Ordinances,

           3        Chapter 66-157(c).

           4             So the staff recommendation is for denial of a

           5        30-foot rear yard setback variance being 35 feet

           6        from the nearest point to the lake at 149 Mags Path,

           7        Map 104A, Parcel 102.

           8             With that, any comments?

           9             MEMBER FARLEY:  No.

          10             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Nothing?

          11             MEMBER FARLEY:  No.

          12             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Do we have a motion?

          13             MEMBER MITCHELL:  I make a motion that we deny

          14        the request for the setback variance.

          15             MEMBER FARLEY:  I second.

          16             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Do we need to clarify or

          17        should we --

          18             MS. JACKSON:  We've got it.

          19             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Okay.  So we have a motion

          20        and a second.

          21             Take a vote?

          22             MR. NELSON:  Ask for discussion.

          23             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Oh, okay.  I'm sorry.

          24             Is there any additional discussion on that?

          25             MEMBER MITCHELL:  No.
�                                                                     33



           1             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Okay.  And, for the record,

           2        a vote of "yes" will mean "no".

           3             MR. SCHMITT:  Mr. Hill?

           4             MEMBER HILL:  Yes.

           5             MR. SCHMITT:  Ms. Farley?

           6             MEMBER FARLEY:  Yes.

           7             MR. SCHMITT:  Mr. Pierson?

           8             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  No.

           9             MR. SCHMITT:  Mr. Mitchell?

          10             MEMBER MITCHELL:  Yes.

          11             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  We have a three to one no

          12        vote.  There will be a Commissioners meeting

          13        June 15th at 6:30 p.m. for any appeals.

          14             So if you wish to, it will be right here.

          15             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  We'll see you on the 15th.

          16             MR. HAYMORE:  I wanted to clarify that.

          17             MR. NELSON:  We'll make sure -- you just follow

          18        the ordinances on the appeal.  You've got a time

          19        period.  The 15th is established if you meet the

          20        time period for the appeal.

          21             MR. HAYMORE:  So if we appeal within ten days I

          22        think, which is the standard for appealing a --

          23             MR. NELSON:  I believe it's five, Jeff.

          24             MS. JACKSON:  Five or ten.  I'm not sure.

          25             MR. NELSON:  We'll check the ordinances.
�                                                                     34



           1             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  You'll have it tomorrow.

           2             MR. HAYMORE:  I checked it.  It was ten, but to

           3        the point that it hasn't updated --

           4             MR. NELSON:  That didn't change.

           5             MR. HAYMORE:  That did not?  So as long as we

           6        appeal within the requisite time, we'll be heard on

           7        the -- what date; the 15th of June?

           8             MS. JACKSON:  Yes.

           9             MR. NELSON:  Well, I don't want to commit to

          10        that.  This body doesn't set the agenda before the

          11        Commissioners and --

          12             MR. HAYMORE:  But if the appeal is timely, then

          13        we'll be heard at a later date is what you're --

          14             MS. JACKSON:  At a later date.  The Board of

          15        Commissioners will set that time.  We don't

          16        establish their timing.

          17             We just have to submit it and they will

          18        establish the time as to when they can hear it.

          19             MR. DILLARD:  Okay.  So as long as we file

          20        within --

          21             MS. JACKSON:  The ten days.

          22             MR. DILLARD:  You'll set the hearing.  We'll

          23        file it in ten days.

          24             MS. JACKSON:  Yes.  And the Board of

          25        Commissioners will let you know what agenda you will
�                                                                     35



           1        be on.

           2             MR. DILLARD:  Thank you.

           3             MR. SPRAYBERRY:  Thank you for your time.

           4             MR. HAYMORE:  Thank you.

           5             CHAIRMAN PIERSON:  Okay.

           6             MR. HAYMORE:  That's it.

           7                           * * * * *

           8

           9             (Proceedings adjourned at 7:12 p.m.)

          10

          11

          12

          13

          14

          15

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
�                                                                     36



           1                    C E R T I F I C A T E

           2   PUTNAM COUNTY:

           3   G E O R G I A:

           4             The foregoing proceedings were taken down by

           5   me as a Certified Court Reporter in the State of

           6   Georgia, and the proceedings thereto were reduced to

           7   typewriting by me, personally.  I hereby certify that

           8   pages 1 through 36, inclusive, comprise a complete and

           9   correct transcript of said proceedings.  I further

          10   certify that I am neither kin nor counsel for any

          11   party; and am in no way interested in the outcome of

          12   said case.

          13             This, the 9th day of June, 2021.

          14

          15

          16                         ______________________________
                                     KELLEY MARIE NADOTTI, RPR, CCR
          17                         Certified Court Reporter
                                     CCR 6256-8388-8026-4192
          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
�

